### **UNITED STATES** SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

### **FORM 10-Q**

☑ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2022

	OR		
☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 O	R 15(d) OF THE SECURITI	ES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	
For the transi	ition period from	to	
Com	mission File Number 001-33	8910	
TECTO	NIC FINANCIA	AL, INC.	
(Exact name	e of registrant as specified in	its charter)	
Texas (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)		<b>82-07648</b> (I.R.S. Emp Identificatio	oloyer
(Addr	200 Dallas Parkway, Suite 1  Dallas, Texas 75248 ess of principal executive off  (972) 720 - 9000 stelephone number, including	ũces)	
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:			
Title of each class	Trading Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange	on which registered
Series B preferred stock, \$0.01 par value per share	TECTP	The Nasdaq Stock	Market, LLC
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all during the preceding 12 months (or such shorter period that trequirements for the past 90 days. Yes $\boxtimes$ No $\square$ Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted e Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the precedin Yes $\boxtimes$ No $\square$	the registrant was required the registrant was required the registrant was required to	o filed such reports), and (2) have Data File required to be subm	s been subject to such filing
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accele emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accompany" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.			
Large accelerated filer		Accelerated filer	
Non-accelerated filer	$\boxtimes$	Smaller reporting company	$\boxtimes$
		Emerging growth company	$\boxtimes$
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to			for complying with any new
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company	y (as defined in Rule 12b-2 o	f the Exchange Act). Yes $\square$ No $\boxtimes$	
The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's Common S	Stock as of August 12, 2022 v	vas 7,062,319 shares.	

#### TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021	3
	Consolidated Statements of Income for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021	4
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021	5
	Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021	6
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021	7
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	8
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	30
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	55
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	56
	PART II. OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	57
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	57
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	57
Item 3.	Defaults upon Senior Securities	57
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	57
Item 5.	Other Information	57
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	57
SIGNATU	<u>RES</u>	58

#### PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

#### **Item 1. Financial Statements**

### TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share amounts) ASSETS		June 30, 2022 Jnaudited)		ecember 31, 2021
Cash and due from banks	\$	9,259	\$	10,203
Interest-bearing deposits		31,626		35,311
Federal funds sold		628		478
Total cash and cash equivalents		41,513	-	45,992
Securities available for sale		20,174		17,156
Securities held to maturity		26,227		19,673
Securities, restricted at cost		3,485		2,432
Securities, not readily marketable		100		100
Loans held for sale		31,950		33,762
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of \$4,235 and \$4,152, respectively		424,711		424,595
Bank premises and equipment, net		4,668		4,729
Other real estate		1,079		1,079
Core deposit intangible, net		674		777
Goodwill		21,440		21,440
Deferred tax asset		695		405
Other assets		12,108		12,871
Total assets	\$	588,824	\$	585,011
LIABILITIES				
Demand deposits:				
Non-interest-bearing	\$	100,977	\$	88,876
Interest-bearing		144,849		147,909
Time deposits		228,801		207,384
Total deposits	_	474,627		444,169
Borrowed funds		-		34,521
Subordinated notes		12,000		12,000
Other liabilities		11,376		9,534
Total liabilities		498,003		500,224
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 11)				,
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Preferred stock, 9.00% fixed to floating rate Series B non-cumulative, perpetual (\$0.01 par value; 1,725,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021)		17		17
Common stock, \$0.01 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 7,071,953 and 7,061,953 shares issued at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, and 7,062,319 and 7,061,953 shares outstanding				
at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		71		71
Additional paid-in capital		50,446		50,176
Treasury stock, at cost; 9,634 shares as of June 30, 2022, and no shares as of December 31, 2021		(181)		-
Retained earnings		42,218		34,851
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(1,750)		(328)
Total shareholders' equity		90,821		84,787
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$	588,824	\$	585,011

# TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months En			nded June 30,	
(In thousands, except per share data and share amounts)		2022		2021		2022		2021
Interest Income								
Loan, including fees	\$	7,014	\$	5,993	\$	14,206	\$	12,156
Securities		417		207		752		353
Federal funds sold		1		-		1		-
Interest-bearing deposits		72		16		93		21
Total interest income		7,504		6,216		15,052		12,530
Interest Expense								
Deposits		686		587		1,336		1,248
Borrowed funds		230		301		471		590
Total interest expense		916		888		1,807		1,838
Net interest income		6,588		5,328		13,245		10,692
Provision for loan losses		=		141		327		569
Net interest income after provision for loan losses		6,588		5,187		12,918		10,123
Non-interest Income								
Trust income		1,557		1,532		3,154		2,972
Gain on sale of loans		-		101		-		101
Advisory income		3,358		3,276		6,932		6,293
Brokerage income		3,712		2,028		6,183		4,591
Service fees and other income		1,889		1,408		4,105		3,714
Rental income		88		88		189		176
Total non-interest income		10,604		8,433		20,563		17,847
Non-interest Expense								
Salaries and employee benefits		7,879		5,923		15,335		11,789
Occupancy and equipment		422		392		873		819
Trust expenses		560		595		1,158		1,159
Brokerage and advisory direct costs		498		491		1,026		997
Professional fees		353		332		753		782
Data processing		221		266		390		470
Other		1,346		834		2,703		1,609
Total non-interest expense		11,279		8,833		22,238		17,625
Income before Income Taxes		5,913		4,787		11,243		10,345
Income tax expense		1,172		1,070		2,217		2,330
Net Income		4,741		3,717		9,026		8,015
Preferred stock dividends		388		388		776		776
Net income available to common stockholders	\$	4,353	\$	3,329	\$	8,250	\$	7,239
Earnings per common share:								
Basic	\$	0.62	\$	0.51	\$	1.17	\$	1.10
Diluted		0.59		0.50		1.13		1.09
Weighted average common shares outstanding		7,062,319		6,568,750		7,060,669		6,568,750
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding		7,317,084		6,630,976		7,315,434		6,630,976
		. , ,		.,,-		. , ,		-,,-

# TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ended June 30,				Six Months E	nded	ded June 30,	
(In thousands)		2022		2021	2022		2021	
Net Income	\$	4,741	\$	3,717	\$ 9,026	\$	8,015	
Other comprehensive (loss) income:								
Change in unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities available for sale		(701)		30	(1,800)		(260)	
Tax effect		(147)		5	(378)		(56)	
Other comprehensive (loss) income		(554)		25	(1,422)		(204)	
Comprehensive Income	\$	4,187	\$	3,742	\$ 7,604	\$	7,811	

### TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Unaudited)

	ries B	(	Common	dditional Paid-in	Treasury	p	etained	Accumulated Other omprehensive	
(In thousands)	tock		Stock	Capital	Stock		arnings	ncome (Loss)	Total
Balance at January 1, 2021	\$ 17	\$	66	\$ 39,201	\$ -	\$	20,661	\$ 68	\$ 60,013
Dividends paid on Series B preferred stock	-		-	-	-		(388)	-	(388)
Net income	-		-	-	-		4,298	-	4,298
Other comprehensive loss	-		-	-	-		-	(229)	(229)
Stock based compensation	 <u>-</u>		<u> </u>	85			<u>-</u>	 <u> </u>	85
Balance at March 31, 2021	\$ 17	\$	66	\$ 39,286	\$ -	\$	24,571	\$ (161)	\$ 63,779
Dividends paid on Series B preferred stock	-		-	-	-		(388)	-	(388)
Dividends paid on common stock	-		-	-	-		(411)	-	(411)
Net income	-		-	-	-		3,717	-	3,717
Other comprehensive income	-		-	-	-		-	25	25
Stock based compensation			_	78					78
Balance at June 30, 2021	\$ 17	\$	66	\$ 39,364	\$ <u> </u>	\$	27,489	\$ (136)	\$ 66,800
						-			
Balance at January 1, 2022	\$ 17	\$	71	\$ 50,176	\$ -	\$	34,851	\$ (328)	\$ 84,787
Exercise of stock options	-		-	43	-		-	-	43
Purchase of treasury stock at cost	-		-	-	(181)		-	-	(181)
Dividends paid on Series B preferred stock	-		-	-	-		(388)	-	(388)
Dividends paid on common stock	-		-	-	-		(441)	-	(441)
Net income	-		-	-	-		4,285	-	4,285
Other comprehensive loss	-		-	-	-		-	(868)	(868)
Stock based compensation	 <u>-</u>		<u> </u>	87			<u> </u>	 <u>-</u>	 87
Balance at March 31, 2022	\$ 17	\$	71	\$ 50,306	\$ (181)	\$	38,307	\$ (1,196)	\$ 87,324
Recognition of stock issued related to reduction of									
note receivable utilized to exercise options	-		-	50	-		-	-	50
Dividends paid on common stock	-		-	-	-		(442)	-	(442)
Dividends paid on Series B preferred stock	-		-	-	-		(388)	-	(388)
Net income	-		-	-	-		4,741	-	4,741
Other comprehensive loss	-		-	-	-		-	(554)	(554)
Stock based compensation	 		-	 90			-		90
Balance at June 30, 2022	\$ 17	\$	71	\$ 50,446	\$ (181)	\$	42,218	\$ (1,750)	\$ 90,821

# TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

		Six months Ended June 30,							
(In thousands)	·	2022	2021						
Cash Flows from Operating Activities									
Net income	\$	9,026	\$	8,015					
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:									
Provision for loan losses		327		569					
Depreciation and amortization		115		163					
Accretion of discount on loans		(12)		(40)					
Core deposit intangible amortization		103		101					
Securities premium amortization, net		6		103					
Origination of loans held for sale		(34,721)		(22,682)					
Proceeds from payments and sales of loans held for sale		224		1,415					
Gain on sale of loans		-		(101)					
Stock based compensation		177		163					
Deferred income taxes		88		(153)					
Servicing assets, net		138		-					
Net change in:									
Other assets		624		2,697					
Other liabilities		1,842		(2,626)					
Net cash used in operating activities		(22,063)		(12,376)					
Cash Flows from Investing Activities									
Purchase of securities held to maturity		(7,408)		-					
Purchase of securities available for sale		(180,015)		(153,000)					
Principal payments, calls and maturities of securities available for sale		175,169		152,161					
Principal payments of securities held to maturity		877		2,932					
Purchase of securities, restricted		(6,381)		(4,157)					
Proceeds from sale of securities, restricted		5,328		4,157					
Net change in loans		35,878		4,635					
Purchases of premises and equipment		(54)		-					
Net cash provided by investing activities		23,394		6,728					
Cash Flows from Financing Activities									
Net change in demand deposits		9,041		33,370					
Net change in time deposits		21,417		2,611					
Proceeds from borrowed funds		180,800		220,461					
Repayment of borrowed funds		(215,321)		(216,607)					
Dividends paid on Series B preferred stock		(776)		(776)					
Dividends paid on common stock		(883)		(411)					
Exercise of stock options		43		-					
Repayments on note receivable utilized to exercise stock options		50		-					
Purchase of treasury stock at cost		(181)		=					
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities		(5,810)		38,648					
Net change in cash and cash equivalents		(4,479)		33,000					
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period		45,992		46,868					
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$	41,513	\$	79,868					
Non Cash Transactions									
Transfers from loans held for sale to loans held for investment	\$	36,309	\$	15,067					
Lease liabilities incurred in exchange for right-of-use assets	\$	74	\$	56					
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information	Ψ	7-7	Ψ	30					
Cash paid during the period for:									
Interest	\$	1,852	\$	1,835					
Income taxes	\$	2,120	\$	1,833					
	Ψ	2,120	Ψ	1,033					

#### Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

#### Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Tectonic Financial, Inc. (the "Company," "we," "us," or "our") is a financial holding company that offers, through its subsidiaries, banking and other financial services including trust, investment advisory, securities brokerage, factoring, third-party administration, recordkeeping and insurance services to individuals, small businesses and institutions across the United States.

We operate through four main direct and indirect subsidiaries: (i) T Bancshares, Inc. ("TBI"), which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas on December 23, 2002 to serve as the bank holding company for T Bank, N.A., a national banking association (the "Bank"), (ii) Sanders Morris Harris LLC ("Sanders Morris"), a registered broker-dealer with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") and registered investment advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission, ("SEC"), (iii) Tectonic Advisors, LLC ("Tectonic Advisors"), a registered investment advisor registered with the SEC focused generally on managing money for relatively large, affiliated institutions, and (iv) HWG Insurance Agency LLC ("HWG"), an insurance agency registered with the Texas Department of Insurance ("TDI").

We are headquartered in Dallas, Texas. The Bank operates through its main office located at 16200 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas. Our other subsidiaries operate from offices in Houston, Dallas and Plano, Texas. Our Houston, Texas office is located at 600 Travis Street, 59th Floor, Houston, Texas, and includes the home offices of Sanders Morris and HWG, as well as Tectonic Advisors' family office services team. Our other Dallas office, which is a branch office of Sanders Morris, is at 5950 Sherry Lane, Suite 470, Dallas, Texas. Our main office for Tectonic Advisors is in Plano, Texas at 6900 Dallas Parkway, Suite 625, Plano, Texas, and also includes a branch office of HWG.

The Bank offers a broad range of commercial and consumer banking and trust services primarily to small- to medium-sized businesses and their employees, and other institutions. The Nolan Company ("Nolan"), operating as a division within the Bank, offers third party administration ("TPA") services, and Integra Funding Solutions ("Integra"), also operating as a division within the Bank, offers factoring services. The Bank's technological capabilities, including worldwide free ATM withdrawals, sophisticated on-line banking capabilities, electronic funds transfer capabilities, and economical remote deposit solutions, allow most customers to be served regardless of their geographic location. The Bank serves its local geographic market which includes Dallas, Tarrant, Denton, Collin and Rockwall counties which encompass an area commonly referred to as the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex. The Bank also serves the dental and other health professional industries through a centralized loan and deposit platform that operates out of its main office in Dallas, Texas. In addition, the Bank serves the small business community by offering loans guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration ("SBA") and the U.S. Department of Agriculture ("USDA").

The Bank offers a wide range of deposit services including demand deposits, regular savings accounts, money market accounts, individual retirement accounts, and certificates of deposit with fixed rates and a range of maturity options. Lending services include commercial loans to small- to medium-sized businesses and professional concerns as well as consumers. The Bank also offers trust services. The Bank's traditional fiduciary services clients primarily consist of clients of Cain, Watters & Associates, LLC ("Cain Watters"). The Bank, Cain Watters and Tectonic Advisors entered into an advisory services agreement related to the trust operations in April 2006, which has been amended from time to time, most recently in July 2016. See Note 12, *Related Parties*, to these consolidated financial statements for more information. In addition, the Nolan division of the Bank offers TPA services and provides clients with retirement plan design and administrative services, specializing in ministerial recordkeeping, administration, actuarial and design services for retirement plans of small businesses and professional practices. We believe offering TPA services allows us to serve our clients more fully and to attract new clients to our trust platform.

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 (this "Form 10-Q") include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q adopted by the SEC. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements and should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, and notes thereto, for the year ended December 31, 2021 in the audited financial statements included within our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments that were normal and recurring in nature, and considered necessary, have been included for the fair presentation of the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations. Operating results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the full year ending December 31, 2022.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period, as well as the disclosures provided. Actual results could be significantly different from those estimates. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates. The determination of the allowance for loan losses, the fair value of stock options, the fair values of financial instruments and other real estate owned, and the status of contingencies are particularly susceptible to significant change in recorded amounts.

Accounting Changes, Reclassifications and Restatements. Certain items in prior financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during each year. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted-average shares and all potential dilutive shares outstanding during the period. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS for the following periods:

	Three months ended June 30,				Six months ended June 30,				
(In thousands, except per share data)	2022 2021		2022		2021				
Net income available to common shareholders	\$	4,353	\$	3,329	\$	8,250	\$	7,239	
Average shares outstanding		7,062		6,569		7,061		6,569	
Effect of dilutive shares		255		62		254		62	
Average diluted shares outstanding		7,317		6,631		7,315		6,631	
Basic earnings per share	\$	0.62	\$	0.51	\$	1.17	\$	1.10	
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.59	\$	0.50	\$	1.13	\$	1.09	

As of June 30, 2022, options to purchase 180,000 shares of common stock, with a weighted average exercise price of \$5.43, were included in the computation of diluted net earnings per share. In addition, as of June 30, 2022, 210,000 shares of restricted stock grants with a grant date fair value of \$4.81 per share which vest from 2023 through 2025 were included in the diluted earnings per share calculation.

#### Note 2. Securities

A summary of amortized cost and fair value of securities is presented below as of the dates indicated.

		June 30, 2022									
(In thousands)	A	mortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses			stimated air Value				
Securities available for sale:											
U.S. Treasuries	\$	1,980	\$ -	\$	15	\$	1,965				
U.S government agencies		15,768	-		2,078		13,690				
Mortgage-backed securities		4,641			122		4,519				
Total securities available for sale	\$	22,389	\$ -	\$	2,215	\$	20,174				
Securities held to maturity:											
Property assessed clean energy	\$	2,593	\$ -	\$	-	\$	2,593				
Public improvement district/tax increment reinvestment zone		23,634	-		-		23,634				
Total securities held to maturity	\$	26,227	\$ -	\$	-	\$	26,227				
Securities, restricted:											
Other	\$	3,485	\$ -	\$	-	\$	3,485				
Securities not readily marketable	\$	100	\$ -	\$	-	\$	100				
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~											

				December	r 31, 202	21	
(In thousands)		Amortized Cost		Gross Unrealized Gains		ross ealized osses	stimated ir Value
Securities available for sale:							
U.S. government agencies	\$	15,847	\$	4	\$	449	\$ 15,402
Mortgage-backed securities		1,724		30		<u>-</u>	 1,754
Total securities available for sale	\$	17,571	\$	34	\$	449	\$ 17,156
Securities held to maturity:							
Property assessed clean energy	\$	2,731	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 2,731
Public improvement district/tax increment reinvestment zone		16,942					 16,942
Total securities held to maturity	\$	19,673	\$	_	\$		\$ 19,673
Securities, restricted:							
Other	\$	2,432	\$		\$		\$ 2,432
Securities not readily marketable	\$	100	\$		\$		\$ 100

Securities available for sale consist of U.S. government agency securities and mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by U.S. government agencies. Securities held to maturity consist of Property Assessed Clean Energy ("PACE") and Public Improvement District/Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone ("PID/TIRZ") investments. These investment contracts or bonds located in Texas, California and Florida, originate under a contractual obligation between the property owners, the local county or city administration, and a third-party administrator and sponsor. PACE assessments are created to fund the purchase and installation of energy saving improvements to the property such as solar panels. PID/TIRZ assessments are used to pay for the development costs of a residential subdivision. Generally, as a property assessment, the total assessment is repaid in installments over a period of 5 to 32 years by the then current property owner(s). Each installment is collected by the County or City Tax Collector where the property is located. The assessments are an obligation of the property. Securities, restricted consist of Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas ("FRB") and Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas ("FRB") stock, which are carried at cost.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, securities available for sale with a fair value of \$113,000 and \$163,000, respectively, were pledged against trust deposit balances held at the Bank.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Bank held FRB stock in the amount of \$2.2 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. The Bank held FHLB stock in the amount of \$1.3 million at each of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The FRB stock and FHLB stock were classified as restricted securities.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company held an income interest in a private investment, which is not readily marketable, accounted for under the cost method in the amount of \$100,000.

The table below indicates the length of time individual investment securities have been in a continuous loss position as of June 30, 2022:

		Less than	12 mo	onths	12 months or longer							
			U	nrealized			ī	Unrealized			U	nrealized
(In thousands)	Fair	· Value		Losses	F	air Value		Losses	Fa	air Value		Losses
U.S. Treasuries	\$	1,965	\$	15	\$		\$	-	\$	1,965	\$	15
U.S. government agencies		3,217		423		10,473	\$	1,655		13,690		2,078
Mortgage-backed securities		4,519		122		-		-		4,519		122
Total	\$	9,701	\$	560	\$	10,473	\$	1,655	\$	20,174	\$	2,215

The number of investment positions in this unrealized loss position totaled twenty-four as of June 30, 2022. The Company does not believe these unrealized losses are "other than temporary" as (i) it does not have the intent to sell the securities prior to recovery and/or maturity and, (ii) it is more likely than not that the Company will not have to sell the securities prior to recovery and/or maturity. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2022, no impairment loss has been realized in the Company's consolidated statements of income.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale as of June 30, 2022 are presented in the table below by contractual maturity. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations. Residential mortgage-backed securities are shown separately since they are not due at a single maturity date.

		Sale		
			Estimated	
(In thousands)		Cost		Fair Value
Due in one year or less	\$	988	\$	981
Due after one year through five years		5,994		5,446
Due after five years through ten years		7,120		6,288
Due after ten years		3,646		2,940
Mortgage-backed securities		4,641		4,519
Total	\$	22,389	\$	20,174

#### Note 3. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Major classifications of loans held for investment are as follows as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands)	June 30, 2022	December 31, 2021
Commercial and industrial	\$ 90,660	\$ 83,348
Consumer installment	1,171	1,099
Real estate – residential	4,491	5,452
Real estate – commercial	57,992	62,966
Real estate – construction and land	3,539	2,585
SBA:		
SBA 7(a) guaranteed	143,488	145,983
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed	58,231	52,524
SBA 504	35,016	35,348
USDA	813	806
Factored Receivables	33,545	38,636
Gross Loans	428,946	428,747
Less:		
Allowance for loan losses	4,235	4,152
Net loans	\$ 424,711	\$ 424,595

Beginning in the second quarter of 2020 and until funding expired on May 31, 2021, the Company participated in the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") which was established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and administered by the SBA. PPP loans may be forgiven by the SBA and are 100 percent guaranteed by the SBA. Therefore, no allowance for loan losses is allocated to PPP loans. Included in SBA 7(a) guaranteed loans at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, were \$363,000 and \$34.1 million of PPP loans originated, respectively.

As of June 30, 2022, our loan portfolio included \$81.0 million of loans, approximately 18.9% of our total funded loans, to the dental industry, as compared to \$67.3 million of loans, or 15.7% of total funded loans (17.1% of total funded loans, net of PPP loans), as of December 31, 2021. The Bank believes that these loans are to credit worthy borrowers and are diversified geographically.

The Company serves the small business community by offering loans promulgated under the SBA's 7(a) and 504 loan programs, and loans guaranteed by the USDA. SBA 7(a) and USDA loans are typically guaranteed by each agency in amounts ranging from 75% to 80% of the principal balance. For SBA construction loans, the Company records the guaranteed funded portion of the loans as held for sale. When the SBA loans are fully funded, the Company may sell the guaranteed portion into the secondary market, on a servicing-retained basis, or reclassify from loans held for sale to loans held for investment if the Company determines that holding these loans provide better long-term risk adjusted returns than selling the loans. In calculating gain on the sale of loans, the Company performs an allocation based on the relative fair values of the sold portion and retained portion of the loan. The Company's assumptions are validated by reference to external market information.

The Company had \$32.0 million and \$33.8 million of non-PPP SBA loans held for sale as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. There were no loans sold for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company sold \$1.1 million of non-PPP SBA loans, resulting in a gain on sale of loans of \$101,000. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company elected to reclassify \$13.0 million and \$36.3 million, respectively, of the SBA 7(a) loans held for sale to loans held for investment.

#### Loan Origination/Risk Management.

The Company maintains written loan origination policies, procedures, and processes which address credit quality at several levels including individual loan level, loan type, and loan portfolio levels.

Commercial and industrial loans, which are predominantly loans to dentists, are underwritten based on historical and projected income of the business and individual borrowers and guarantors. The Company utilizes a comprehensive global debt service coverage analysis to determine debt service coverage ratios. This analysis compares global cash flow of the borrowers and guarantors on an individual credit to existing and proposed debt after consideration of personal and business-related other expenses. Collateral is generally a lien on all available assets of the business borrower including intangible assets. Credit worthiness of individual borrowers and guarantors is established through the use of credit reports and credit scores.

Consumer loans are evaluated on the basis of credit worthiness as established through the use of credit reports and credit scores. Additional credit quality indicators include borrower debt to income ratios based on verifiable income sources.

Real estate mortgage loans are evaluated based on collateral value as well as global debt service coverage ratios based on historical and projected income from all related sources including the collateral property, the borrower, and all guarantors where applicable.

The Company originates SBA loans which are sometimes sold into the secondary market. The Company continues to service these loans after sale and is required under the SBA programs to retain specified amounts. The two primary SBA loan programs that the Company offers are the basic SBA 7(a) loan guaranty program and the SBA 504 loan program in conjunction with junior lien financing from a Certified Development Company ("CDC"). The SBA has designated the Bank as a "Preferred Lender." As an SBA Preferred Lender, the Bank has been delegated loan approval, closing and most servicing and liquidation authority from the SBA.

The SBA 7(a) program serves as the SBA's primary business loan program to help qualified small businesses obtain financing when they might not be eligible for business loans through normal lending channels. Loan proceeds under this program can be used for most business purposes including working capital, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, land and building (including purchase, renovation and new construction), leasehold improvements and debt refinancing. Loan maturity is generally up to 10 years for non-real estate collateral and up to 25 years for real estate collateral. The SBA 7(a) loan is approved and funded by a qualified lender, partially guaranteed by the SBA and subject to applicable regulations. In general, the SBA guarantees up to 75% (100% for PPP loans) of the loan amount depending on loan size. The Company is required by the SBA to service the loan and retain a contractual minimum of 5% on all SBA 7(a) loans, but generally retains 25% (the unguaranteed portion). The servicing spread is 1% of the guaranteed portion of the loan that is sold in the secondary market. Included in the SBA 7(a) loans reflected in this Form 10-Q are the PPP loans originated by the Company. PPP loans totaling \$363,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2022.

The SBA 504 program is an economic development-financing program providing long-term, low down payment loans to businesses. Typically, a 504 project includes a loan secured from a private-sector lender with a senior lien, a loan secured from a CDC (funded by a 100% SBA-guaranteed debenture) with a junior lien covering up to 40% of the total cost, and a contribution of at least 10% equity from the borrower. Debenture limits are \$5.0 million for regular 504 loans and \$5.5 million for those 504 loans that meet a public policy goal.

The Company also offers Business & Industry ("B&I") program loans through the USDA. These loans are similar to the SBA product, except they are guaranteed by the USDA. The guaranteed amount is generally 80%. B&I loans are made to businesses in designated rural areas and are generally larger loans to larger businesses than the SBA 7(a) loans. Similar to the SBA 7(a) product, they can be sold into the secondary market. These loans can be utilized for rural commercial real estate and equipment. The loans can have maturities up to 30 years and the rates can be fixed or variable.

Construction and land development loans are evaluated based on the borrower's and guarantor's credit worthiness, past experience in the industry, track record and experience with the type of project being considered, and other factors. Collateral value is determined generally by independent appraisal utilizing multiple approaches to determine value based on property type.

The Bank engages in third-party factoring of certain business's accounts receivable invoices. The Bank's factoring clients are primarily in the transportation industry. Each account debtor is credit qualified, confirming credit worthiness and stability, because the underlying debtor represents the substantive underlying credit risk. Some factored receivables are full recourse to and personally guaranteed by the factoring client. In such cases, the client is credit qualified under specific policy guidelines. Concentration limits are set and monitored for aggregate factored receivables, account debtors, and individual factoring clients. In addition, we consider the overall state of each specific industry, currently over-the-road trucking, in our evaluation of the credit worthiness of the factoring client and the underlying debtor.

For all loan types, the Company establishes guidelines for its underwriting criteria including collateral coverage ratios, global debt service coverage ratios, and maximum amortization or loan maturity terms.

At the portfolio level, the Company monitors concentrations of loans based on several criteria including loan type, collateral type, industry, geography, and other factors. The Company also performs periodic market research and economic analysis at a local geographic and national level. Based on this research, the Company may from time to time change the minimum or benchmark underwriting criteria applied to the above loan types.

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in management's opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payment obligations as they become due, as well as when required by regulatory provisions. Loans may be placed on non-accrual status regardless of whether or not such loans are considered past due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. A loan may be returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future principal and interest amounts contractually due are reasonably assured, which is typically evidenced by a sustained period of repayment performance by the borrower.

Non-accrual loans, segregated by class of loans, were as follows as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands)	June	30, 2022	Decemb	er 31, 2021
Non-accrual loans:		_		
Real estate – commercial	\$	144	\$	149
SBA guaranteed		2,347		2,039
SBA unguaranteed		56		-
Total	\$	2,547	\$	2,188

The restructuring of a loan is considered a "troubled debt restructuring" ("TDR") if, due to the borrower's financial difficulties, the Company has granted a concession that the Company would not otherwise consider. This may include a transfer of real estate or other assets from the borrower, a modification of loan terms, or a combination of the two. Modification of loan terms may include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal forgiveness, restructuring amortization schedules, reductions in collateral and other actions intended to minimize potential losses.

Under Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Subtopic 310-40 Receivables – Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors, and Interagency Statements issued by the federal banking regulators, in consultation with the FASB, certain short-term loan modifications and additional accommodations made on a good faith basis in response to COVID-19 (as defined by the guidance) to borrowers who were current prior to any relief are not considered TDRs. Additionally, under Section 4013 of the CARES Act, as amended by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, banks may elect to suspend the requirement for certain loan modifications to be categorized as a TDR. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has implemented prudent modifications allowing for primarily short-term payment deferrals or other payment relief to borrowers with pandemic-related economic hardships, where appropriate, that complies with the above guidance. As such, the Company's TDR loans noted above do not include loans with modifications to borrowers impacted by COVID-19. As of June 30, 2022, there were no loans on deferment due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were no loans identified as TDRs. There were no new TDRs during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 or the year ended December 31, 2021.

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreement, including scheduled principal and interest payments. If a loan is impaired, a specific valuation allowance is allocated, if necessary, so that the loan is reported net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan's existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Interest payments on impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless collectability of the principal amount is reasonably assured, in which case interest is recognized on a cash basis. Impaired loans, or portions thereof, are charged off when deemed uncollectible.

The Company's impaired loans and related allowance is summarized in the following table as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands)	Cont Pri	paid ractual ncipal lance	Inv	corded estment ith No owance	Recorded Investment With Allowance		Total Recorded Investment	Related llowance	R	Average lecorded vestment	Inter Inco Recog	me
June 30, 2022										Six Mon	hs Ended	1
SBA	\$	2,759	\$	2,126	\$ -	. \$	\$ 2,126	\$ -	\$	2,449	\$	-
Total	\$	2,759	\$	2,126	\$ -		\$ 2,126	\$ -	\$	2,449	\$	
December 31, 2021										Ye	ar Ended	
Commercial and industrial	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	. §	\$ -	\$ -	\$	73	\$	4
SBA		3,658		3,071	-		3,071	-		6,333		21
Total	\$	3,658	\$	3,071	\$ -		\$ 3,071	\$ 	\$	6,406	\$	25

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the date such payments were due. The Company's past due loans are as follows as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands)	30-89 Days Past Due		90 Days or More Past Due		_	Total Past Due	Total Current		Total Loans		Day	Fotal 90 s Past Due l Accruing
June 30, 2022	•		ф		ф		ф	22.552	ф	20.660	ф	
Commercial and industrial	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	90,660	\$	90,660	\$	-
Consumer installment		-		-		-		1,171		1,171		-
Real estate – residential		-		210		210		4,281		4,491		210
Real estate – commercial		-		-		-		57,992		57,992		-
Real estate - construction and land		-		-		-		3,539		3,539		-
SBA		-		2,403		2,403		234,332		236,735		-
USDA		-		-		-		813		813		-
Factored Receivables		1,105		170		1,275		32,270		33,545		170
Total	\$	1,105	\$	2,783	\$	3,888	\$	425,058	\$	428,946	\$	380
December 31, 2021												
Commercial and industrial	\$	4	\$	-	\$	4	\$	83,344	\$	83,348	\$	-
Consumer installment		-		-		-		1,099		1,099		-
Real estate – residential		-		-		-		5,452		5,452		-
Real estate – commercial		219		-		219		62,747		62,966		-
Real estate – construction and land		-		-		-		2,585		2,585		-
SBA		1,762		-		1,762		232,093		233,855		-
USDA		-		-		-		806		806		-
Factored receivables		1,743		400		2,143		36,493		38,636		400
Total	\$	3,728	\$	400	\$	4,128	\$	424,619	\$	428,747	\$	400

As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company's loan portfolio, management tracks certain credit quality indicators including internal credit risk based on past experiences as well as external statistics and factors. Loans are graded in one of six categories: (i) pass, (ii) pass-watch, (iii) special mention, (iv) substandard, (v) doubtful, or (vi) loss. Loans graded as loss are charged-off.

The classifications of loans reflect a judgment about the risks of default and loss associated with the loan. The Company reviews the ratings on credits quarterly. No significant changes were made to the loan risk grading system definitions and allowance for loan loss methodology during the past year. Ratings are adjusted to reflect the degree of risk and loss that is felt to be inherent in each credit. The Company's methodology is structured so that specific allocations are increased in accordance with deterioration in credit quality (and a corresponding increase in risk and loss) or decreased in accordance with improvement in credit quality (and a corresponding decrease in risk and loss).

Credits rated pass are acceptable loans, appropriately underwritten, bearing an ordinary risk of loss to the Company. Loans in this category are loans to highly credit worthy borrowers with financial statements presenting a good primary source as well as an adequate secondary source of repayment.

Credits rated pass-watch loans have been determined to require enhanced monitoring for potential weaknesses which require further investigation. They have no significant delinquency in the past twelve months. This rating causes the loan to be actively monitored with greater frequency than pass loans and allows appropriate downgrade transition if verifiable adverse events are confirmed. This category may also include loans that have improved in credit quality from special mention but are not yet considered pass loans.

Credits rated special mention show clear signs of financial weaknesses or deterioration in credit worthiness; however, such concerns are not so pronounced that the Company generally expects to experience significant loss within the short-term. Such credits typically maintain the ability to perform within standard credit terms and credit exposure is not as prominent as credits rated more harshly.

Credits rated substandard are those in which the normal repayment of principal and interest may be, or has been, jeopardized by reason of adverse trends or developments of a financial, managerial, economic or political nature, or important weaknesses exist in collateral. A protracted workout on these credits is a distinct possibility. Prompt corrective action is therefore required to strengthen the Company's position, and/or to reduce exposure and to assure that adequate remedial measures are taken by the borrower. Credit exposure becomes more likely in such credits and a serious evaluation of the secondary support to the credit is performed. Guaranteed portions of SBA loans graded substandard are generally on non-accrual due to the limited amount of interest covered by the guarantee, usually 60 days maximum. However, there typically will be no exposure to loss on the principal amount of these guaranteed portions of the loan.

Credits rated doubtful are those in which full collection of principal appears highly questionable, and which some degree of loss is anticipated, even though the ultimate amount of loss may not yet be certain and/or other factors exist which could affect collection of debt. Based upon available information, positive action by the Company is required to avert or minimize loss.

Loans classified loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future.

The following table summarizes the Company's internal ratings of its loans as of the dates indicated:

	_	Pass-	Special				
(In thousands)	 Pass	 Watch	 Mention	Sul	ostandard	 Ooubtful	 Total
June 30, 2022							
Commercial and industrial	\$ 89,913	\$ -	\$ 747	\$	-	\$ -	\$ 90,660
Consumer installment	1,171	-	-		-	-	1,171
Real estate – residential	4,281	-	-		210	-	4,491
Real estate – commercial	57,848	-	-		144	-	57,992
Real estate – construction and land	3,539	-	=		-	-	3,539
SBA	211,691	19,538	4,501		1,005	-	236,735
USDA	813	-	=		-	-	813
Factored Receivables	33,545	-	-		-	-	33,545
Total	\$ 402,801	\$ 19,538	\$ 5,248	\$	1,359	\$ 	\$ 428,946
December 31, 2021							
Commercial and industrial	\$ 82,105	\$ 1,243	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -	\$ 83,348
Consumer installment	1,099	-	-		-	-	1,099
Real estate – residential	5,242	-	-		210	-	5,452
Real estate – commercial	62,817	-	-		149	-	62,966
Real estate – construction and land	2,585	-	-		-	-	2,585
SBA	213,630	16,265	2,659		1,301	-	233,855
USDA	806	-	-		-	-	806
Factored Receivables	38,636	-	-		-	-	38,636
Total	\$ 406,920	\$ 17,508	\$ 2,659	\$	1,660	\$ 	\$ 428,747

The activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is presented below. Management has evaluated the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses by estimating the losses in various categories of the loan portfolio.

(In thousands) Three months ended: June 30, 2022		mercial and ustrial		sumer illment		l Estate idential		l Estate imercial	Real E Constru and L	uction		SBA	US	SDA_		ctored ivables		Total
Beginning Balance	\$	1,213	\$	17	\$	29	\$	901	\$	50	\$	1,409	\$	20	\$	715	\$	4,354
Provision for loan losses	Ψ	40	Ψ	(2)	Ψ	32	Ψ	(115)	Ψ	(2)	Ψ	48	Ψ	(1)	Ψ	-	Ψ	-
Charge-offs		(30)		-		-		(113)		-		-		-		(108)		(138)
Recoveries		-		_		_		_		-		7		_		12		19
Net recoveries (charge-		_				_												
offs)		(30)		_		_		_		_		7		_		(96)		(119)
Ending balance	\$	1,223	\$	15	\$	61	\$	786	\$	48	\$	1,464	\$	19	\$	619	\$	4,235
Ending balance	<u> </u>	-,	Ť		Ť		Ť		<del>*</del>		Ť	-,	Ť		Ť		Ť	1,200
June 30, 2021																		
Beginning Balance	\$	1.037	\$	100	\$	46	\$	581	\$	111	\$	1,264	\$	19	\$	_	\$	3,158
Provision for loan losses	Ψ.	92	Ψ	(50)	Ψ	30	ų.	157	Ψ	(6)	Ψ	(82)	Ψ	-	Ψ	_	Ψ	141
Charge-offs		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		
Recoveries		-		-		-		-		-		8		-		-		8
Net charge-offs		-		-		_		-		-	_	8		_		-		8
Ending balance	\$	1,129	\$	50	\$	76	\$	738	\$	105	\$	1,190	\$	19	\$	_	\$	3,307
(In thousands) Six months ended: June 30, 2022	Ind	mercial and ustrial	Insta	sumer illment	Resi	l Estate idential	Com	l Estate amercial	Real E Constru and L	uction and		SBA		SDA_	Rece	etored ivables		<u>Total</u>
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance		and ustrial				idential 76		mercial 869	Constru	and 40	\$	1,324	US \$	20		ivables 654	\$	4,152
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses	Ind	1,154 99	Insta	llment	Resi	76 (15)	Com	mercial	Constru and L	and 40 8	\$	1,324 171		20 (1)	Rece	654 148		4,152 327
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs	Ind	and ustrial	Insta	llment	Resi	idential 76	Com	mercial 869	Constru and L	40 8	\$	1,324 171 (42)		20 (1)	Rece	654 148 (212)		4,152 327 (284)
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries	Ind	1,154 99 (30)	Insta	15 - -	Resi	76 (15)	Com	869 (83)	Constru and L	40 8 -	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11		20 (1)	Rece	654 148 (212) 29		4,152 327 (284) 40
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs	<u>Ind</u>	1,154 99 (30)	Insta \$	15 - -	Res	76 (15) -	<u>Com</u>	869 (83) - -	Construent and L	40 8 -		1,324 171 (42) 11 (31)	\$	20 (1)	Rece \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183)	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244)
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries	Ind	1,154 99 (30)	Insta	15 - -	Resi	76 (15)	Com	869 (83)	Constru and L	40 8 -	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11		20 (1)	Rece	654 148 (212) 29		4,152 327 (284) 40
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance	<u>Ind</u>	1,154 99 (30)	Insta \$	15 - -	Res	76 (15) -	<u>Com</u>	869 (83) - -	Construent and L	40 8 -		1,324 171 (42) 11 (31)	\$	20 (1)	Rece \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183)	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244)
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021	<u>Ind</u> \$ <u>\$</u>	1,154 99 (30) - (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15 - - - 15	\$ \$	76 (15) - - - 61	\$ \$	869 (83) - - - 786	S S	40 8   48	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464	\$	20 (1) - - - 19	\$ \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183) 619	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021 Beginning Balance	<u>Ind</u>	1,154 99 (30)  (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15   15	Res	76 (15) - - - 61	<u>Com</u>	869 (83) - - - 786	Construent and L	40 8  -48		1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464	\$	20 (1)	Rece \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183)	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses	<u>Ind</u> \$ <u>\$</u>	1,154 99 (30)  (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15 	\$ \$	76 (15) - - - 61	\$ \$	869 (83) - - - 786	S S	40 8 - - 48	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464	\$	20 (1) - - 19	\$ \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183) 619	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs	<u>Ind</u> \$ <u>\$</u>	1,154 99 (30)  (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15   15	\$ \$	76 (15) - - - 61	\$ \$	869 (83) - - - 786	S S	40 8  -48	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464	\$	20 (1) - - - 19	\$ \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183) 619	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries	<u>Ind</u> \$ <u>\$</u>	1,154 99 (30)  (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15 	\$ \$	76 (15) - - - 61	\$ \$	869 (83) - - - 786	S S	40 8 	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464 1,225 168 (215) 12	\$	20 (1) - - 19 18 1	\$ \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183) 619	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235
Six months ended: June 30, 2022 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs Recoveries Net charge-offs Ending balance  June 30, 2021 Beginning Balance Provision for loan losses Charge-offs	<u>Ind</u> \$ <u>\$</u>	1,154 99 (30)  (30) 1,223	Insta \$	15 	\$ \$	76 (15) - - - 61	\$ \$	869 (83) - - - 786	S S	40 8 - - 48	\$	1,324 171 (42) 11 (31) 1,464	\$	20 (1) - - 19	\$ \$	654 148 (212) 29 (183) 619	\$	4,152 327 (284) 40 (244) 4,235

The Company's allowance for loan losses as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 by portfolio segment and detailed on the basis of the Company's impairment methodology was as follows:

(In thousands) June 30, 2022	mercial and ustrial	isumer <u>allment</u>	al Estate sidential	eal Estate mmercial	Co	eal Estate enstruction and Land	 SBA	 J <b>SDA</b>	actored eeivables	 Total
Loans individually evaluated										
for impairment	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Loans collectively evaluated for impairment	 1,223	 15	 61	 786		48	 1,464	 19	 619	 4,235
Ending balance	\$ 1,223	\$ 15	\$ 61	\$ 786	\$	48	\$ 1,464	\$ 19	\$ 619	\$ 4,235
December 31, 2021										
Loans individually evaluated										
for impairment	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Loans collectively evaluated										
for impairment	1,154	15	76	869		40	1,324	20	654	4,152
Ending balance	\$ 1,154	\$ 15	\$ 76	\$ 869	\$	40	\$ 1,324	\$ 20	\$ 654	\$ 4,152
				16						

The Company's recorded investment in loans as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 related to each balance in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment and detailed on the basis of the Company's impairment methodology was as follows:

(In thousands) June 30, 2022	Comm an <u>Indus</u>	d	sumer illment	l Estate idential	al Estate mmercial	Co	eal Estate nstruction and Land	 SBA	 JSDA	actored eivables	 <u>Total</u>
Loans individually evaluated											
for impairment	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$ 2,126	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,126
Loans collectively evaluated											
for impairment	ç	90,660	 1,171	4,491	57,992		3,539	234,609	 813	 33,545	 426,820
Ending balance	\$ 9	90,660	\$ 1,171	\$ 4,491	\$ 57,992	\$	3,539	\$ 236,735	\$ 813	\$ 33,545	\$ 428,946
December 31, 2021											
Loans individually evaluated											
for impairment	\$	-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$ 3,071	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,071
Loans collectively evaluated											
for impairment	8	33,348	1,099	5,452	62,966		2,585	230,784	806	38,636	425,676
Ending balance	\$ 8	33,348	\$ 1,099	\$ 5,452	\$ 62,966	\$	2,585	\$ 233,855	\$ 806	\$ 38,636	\$ 428,747

#### Note 4. Leases

The Company leases certain office facilities and office equipment under operating leases. Certain of the leases contain provisions for renewal options, escalation clauses based on increases in certain costs incurred by the lessor, as well as free rent periods and tenant improvement allowances. The Company amortizes office lease incentives and rent escalations on a straight-line basis over the life of the respective leases. The Company has obligations under operating leases that expire between 2022 and 2027 with initial non-cancellable terms in excess of one year.

We recognize our operating leases on our consolidated balance sheet. Right-of-use assets represent our right to utilize the underlying asset during the lease term, while lease liability represents the obligation to make periodic lease payments over the life of the lease. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, right-of-use assets totaled \$1.9 million and \$1.4 million, respectively, and are reported as other assets on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The related lease liabilities totaled \$1.9 million and \$1.4 million, respectively, and are reported in other liabilities on our accompanying consolidated balance sheet. As of June 30, 2022, the weighted average remaining lease term is forty-six months, and the weighted average discount rate is 4.11%.

As of June 30, 2022, the minimum rental commitments under these noncancelable operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

2022	\$ 300
2023	349
2024	595
2025	598
2026	339
2027 and thereafter	54
Total minimum rental payments	2,235
Less: Interest	(310)
Present value of lease liabilities	\$ 1,925

The Company currently receives rental income from eleven tenants in its headquarters building for office space the Company does not occupy. Aggregate future minimum rentals to be received under non-cancelable leases as of June 30, 2022 were \$673,000 through 2028.

#### Note 5. Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible

Goodwill and core deposit intangible assets were as follows:

	June 30,	December 31,
(In thousands)	2022	2021
Goodwill	\$ 21,440	\$ 21,440
Core deposit intangible, net	674	777

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recorded goodwill of \$10.7 million in connection with the acquisition of Integra. See Note 17, *Acquisition*, to these consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the Company's acquisition of Integra

Core deposit intangible is amortized on a straight line basis over the initial estimated lives of the deposits, which range from five to twelve years. The core deposit intangible amortization totaled \$53,000 and \$103,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and \$50,000 and \$101,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively.

The carrying basis and accumulated amortization of the core deposit intangible as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were as follows:

	June 30,	December 31,
(In thousands)	2022	2021
Gross carrying basis	\$ 1,708	\$ 1,708
Accumulated amortization	(1,034)	(931)
Net carrying amount	\$ 674	\$ 777

The estimated amortization expense of the core deposit intangible remaining as of June 30, 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands)	
2022 remaining	\$ 105
2023	210
2024	210
2025	 149
Total	\$ 674

#### Note 6. Deposits

Deposits were as follows:

(In thousands, except percentages)		June 30, 2022	Decembe	<b>December 31, 2021</b>		
Non-interest bearing demand	\$ 10	00,977 22%	\$ 88,876	20%		
Interest-bearing demand (NOW)		8,033	6,459	1		
Money market accounts	1:	27,343 27	133,536	30		
Savings accounts		9,473 2	7,914	2		
Time deposits	2:	28,801 48	207,384	47		
Total	\$ 4'	74,627 100%	\$ 444,169	100%		

The aggregate amount of demand deposit overdrafts that have been reclassified as loans as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was insignificant.

#### Note 7. Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Notes

The Company has a blanket lien credit line with the FHLB with borrowing capacity of \$48.3 million secured by commercial loans. The Company determines its borrowing needs and utilizes overnight advance accordingly at varying terms. The Company had no borrowings with FHLB as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

The Company also has a credit line with the FRB with borrowing capacity of \$20.3 million, which is secured by commercial loans. The Company had no borrowings under this line from the FRB as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. As part of the CARES Act, the FRB offered secured discounted borrowings to banks who originated PPP loans through the Paycheck Protection Program Liquidity Facility ("PPPLF"). During June 2022, the Bank repaid its PPPLF borrowings from the FRB and had no borrowings under the PPPLF as of June 30, 2022.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company also had subordinated notes totaling \$12.0 million, consisting of \$8.0 million issued in 2017 bearing an interest rate of 7.125% payable semi-annually and maturing on July 20, 2027, and \$4.0 million issued in 2018 bearing an interest rate of 7.125% payable semi-annually and maturing on March 31, 2028. The subordinated notes are unsecured and subordinated in right of payment to the payment of our existing and future senior indebtedness and structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness of our subsidiaries.

#### Note 8. Benefit Plans

The Company funds certain costs for medical benefits in amounts determined at the discretion of management. The Company has a retirement savings 401(k) plan covering substantially all employees of the Bank, and a second plan covering substantially all employees of Sanders Morris, Tectonic Advisors and the Company.

Under the plans, the Company matches 100% of the employee's contribution on the first 1% of the employee's compensation, and 50% of the employee's contribution on the next 5% of the employee's compensation. An eligible employee may contribute up to the annual maximum contribution allowed for a given year under guidance from the Internal Revenue Service. At its discretion, the Company may also make additional annual contributions to the plans. Any discretionary contributions are allocated to employees in the proportion of employee contributions to the total contributions of all participants in the plans. No discretionary contributions were made during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The amount of employer contributions charged to expense under the two plans was \$135,000 and \$322,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, and \$112,000 and \$275,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively, and is included in salaries and employee benefits on the consolidated statements of income. There was no accrual payable to the plans as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

#### Note 9. Income Taxes

Income tax expense was approximately \$1.2 million and \$2.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, and \$1.1 million and \$2.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively. The Company's effective income tax rate was 19.8% and 19.7% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, and 22.4% and 22.5% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively.

Net deferred tax assets totaled \$695,000 and \$405,000 at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

The Company files U.S. federal and state income tax returns.

#### Note 10. Stock Compensation Plans

The board of directors and shareholders adopted the Tectonic Financial, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan ("Plan") in May 2017 in connection with the Company's acquisition of TBI. The Plan was amended and restated by the Company and its shareholders effective March 27, 2019 in connection with the Company's initial public offering. The Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company's board of directors and authorizes the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted stock units to employees, directors and consultants in order to promote the success of the Company's business. Incentive stock options may be granted only to employees of the Company, or a parent or subsidiary of the Company. The Company reserved 750,000 authorized shares of common stock for the Plan. The term of each stock option is no longer than 10 years from the date of the grant.

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans using the fair value-based method of accounting. The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant by a third party using a closed form option valuation (Black-Scholes) model. The fair value of each grant award was estimated on the date of grant by a third party using the market approach based on the application of latest 12-month Company metrics to guideline public company multiples.

On September 27, 2021, 40,000 shares of restricted stock of the Company with an exercise price of \$10.00 per share and an intrinsic value of \$6.92 per share were granted with a contract life through December 31, 2021. Sanders Morris issued a full recourse secured promissory note at the time of the grant. These shares of restricted stock vested immediately, and were exercised on October 29, 2021, with the grantees utilizing the proceeds of the promissory note from Sanders Morris to fund the exercise price. This note receivable is recognized within a contra-equity account, with payments by the grantees reducing this balance as they occur. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the note receivable balance was \$350,000 and \$400,000, respectively. The shares are subject to a right of repurchase by the Company under certain circumstances through December 31, 2023.

There were no stock options granted, vested, or forfeited during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. No options were exercised during the three months ended June 30, 2022. During the six months ended June 30, 2022, options on 10,000 shares of the Company's common stock were exercised at \$4.30 per share. There were no options exercised during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021.

The number of options outstanding as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was 180,000 and 190,000, respectively, and the weighted average exercise price as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$5.43 and \$5.37, respectively. The weighted average contractual life as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was 4.87 years and 5.62 years, respectively. Stock options outstanding at the end of the period had immaterial aggregate intrinsic values. The weighted-average grant date fair value of the options as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$1.95 and \$1.94, respectively.

As of June 30, 2022, all 180,000 stock options outstanding were vested, and unrecognized compensation cost totaled \$122,000, all of which was related to the right of repurchase period for the 40,000 shares of restricted stock issued and exercised in 2021. The Company recorded compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods, and for the 40,000 shares of restricted stock granted September 27, 2021, over the right of repurchase period. The Company recorded salaries and employee benefits expense on our consolidated statements of income in connection with the Plan of approximately \$20,000 and \$38,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and \$8,000 and \$24,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively, related to the stock options.

The Company granted restricted stock awards totaling 210,000 shares of common stock on September 30, 2020. The vesting schedules vary by award, with all of the awards vesting over a three-year period from 2023 through 2025.

As of June 30, 2022, all 210,000 awarded shares of restricted stock were outstanding, and the grant date fair value was \$4.81. None of the restricted stock awards were vested as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The weighted average contractual life as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was 1.97 years and 2.46 years, respectively. The Company is recording compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the respective vesting periods. The Company recorded salaries and employee benefits expense on our consolidated statements of income in connection with the Plan of approximately \$70,000 and \$139,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, and \$70,000 and \$139,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively, related to the restricted stock awards. As of June 30, 2022, there was \$517,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the restricted stock awards.

#### Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The following table summarizes loan commitments:

(In thousands)	June 30	0, 2022	<b>December 31, 2021</b>		
Undisbursed loan commitments	\$	42,618	\$	33,704	
Standby letters of credit		282		282	
Total	\$	42,900	\$	33,986	

The Company is involved in various regulatory inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, and litigation matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business. The process of resolving matters through litigation or other means is inherently uncertain, and it is possible that an unfavorable resolution of these matters, will adversely affect the Company, its results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. The Company's regular practice is to expense legal fees as services are rendered in connection with legal matters, and to accrue for liabilities when payment is probable.

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary Sanders Morris, has uncommitted financing arrangements with clearing brokers that finance its customer accounts, certain broker-dealer balances, and firm trading positions. Although these customer accounts and broker-dealer balances are not reflected on the consolidated balance sheets for financial reporting purposes, Sanders Morris has generally agreed to indemnify these clearing brokers for losses they may sustain in connection with the accounts, and therefore, retains risk on these accounts. Sanders Morris is required to maintain certain cash or securities on deposit with its clearing brokers. Deposits with clearing organizations were \$250,000 as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

#### **Employment Agreements**

The Company is party to amended and restated employment agreements with Patrick Howard, President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, and Ken Bramlage, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In addition, the Company entered into an employment agreement with A. Haag Sherman, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in connection with the Company's merger with Tectonic Holdings and its initial public offering. Messrs. Sherman and Howard's employment agreements have a four year term and Mr. Bramlage's employment agreement has a three year term. Each employment agreement is automatically renewable for an additional one-year term unless either party elects not to renew.

#### **Note 12. Related Parties**

Advisors' service agreements: In January 2006, the Company entered into a services agreement (the "Tectonic Advisors-CWA Services Agreement") with Cain Watters. The owners of Cain Watters together hold approximately 30% of the voting ownership in the Company. Under the Tectonic Advisors-CWA Services Agreement, Cain Watters pays the Company for due diligence and research services on investment alternatives available to Cain Watters' clients. The Company earned \$20,000 and \$97,000 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, and \$180,000 and \$484,000 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively, under the Tectonic Advisors-CWA Services Agreement. These fees are included in investment advisory and other related services in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. The Company had \$35,000 in fees payable and \$76,000 in fees receivable related to these services at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, which is included in other liabilities and other assets, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

**CWA Fee Allocation Agreement:** In January 2006, Tectonic Advisors entered into an agreement (the "Fee Allocation Agreement") with Cain Watters with reference to its advisory agreement with the Bank. Tectonic Advisors had \$192,000 and \$225,000 payable to Cain Watters related to this agreement at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, which are included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

During the fourth quarter of 2021, Sanders Morris issued a note receivable in the amount of \$400,000 related to the exercise of restricted stock options which were granted to employees of Sanders Morris on September 27, 2021. See Note 10, *Stock Compensation Plans*, to these consolidated financial statements for more information. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the note receivable balance was \$350,000 and \$400,000, respectively.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, certain officers, directors and their affiliated companies had depository accounts with the Bank totaling approximately \$6.5 million and \$9.2 million, respectively. None of those deposit accounts have terms more favorable than those available to any other depositor. There were no loans outstanding to directors of the Bank or their affiliated companies as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

#### **Note 13. Regulatory Matters**

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's and, accordingly, the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under GAAP, regulatory reporting requirements, and regulatory capital standards. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. Furthermore, the Bank's regulators could require adjustments to regulatory capital not reflected in these financial statements.

Quantitative measures established by regulatory capital standards to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, common equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital to total risk-weighted assets, and of tier 1 capital to average assets. To be categorized as "well-capitalized" under the prompt corrective action framework, the Bank must maintain (i) a Total risk-based capital ratio of 10%; (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8%; (iii) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5%; and (iv) a CET1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.5%.

The Basel III minimum capital ratio requirements and additional capital conservation buffers as applicable to the Company and the Bank as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the table below.

	BASEL III Minimum for Capital Adequacy	BASEL III Additional Capital Conservation	BASEL III Ratio with Capital Conservation
	Requirements	Buffer	Buffer
Total Risk Based Capital (total capital to risk weighted assets)	8.0%	2.5%	10.5%
Tier 1 Risk Based Capital (tier 1 to risk weighted assets)	6.0%	2.5%	8.5%
Common Equity Tier 1 Risk Based ( CET1 to risk weighted assets)	4.5%	2.5%	7.0%
Tier 1 Leverage Ratio (tier 1 to average assets)	4.0%	-%	4.0%

Accordingly, a financial institution may be considered "well capitalized" under the prompt corrective action framework, but not satisfy the buffered Basel III capital ratios. As of June 30, 2022, the Bank's regulatory capital ratios are in excess of the capital conservation buffer and the levels established for "well capitalized" institutions under the Basel III Rules.

The regulatory capital ratios of the Company and the Bank are as follows:

	Actu	al	Minimum Capital Required - Basel III		Required to be Well Cap	
(In thousands, except percentages)	 Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio
As of June 30, 2022	 					
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	\$ 74,621	19.58%	\$ 40,01	10.50%	\$ 38,110	10.00%
T Bank, N.A.	74,573	19.80	39,53	39 10.50	37,656	10.00
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	70,386	18.47	32,39	94 8.50	30,488	8.00
T Bank, N.A.	70,338	18.68	32,00	8.50	30,125	8.00
Common Equity Tier 1 (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	53,136	13.94	26,67	77 7.00	24,772	6.50
T Bank, N.A.	70,338	18.68	26,35	7.00	24,476	6.50
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	70,386	12.92	21,79	90 4.00	27,238	5.00
T Bank, N.A.	70,338	13.09	21,48	4.00	26,859	5.00
As of December 31, 2021						
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	\$ 66,946	18.55%	\$ 37,89	10.50%	\$ 36,089	10.00%
T Bank, N.A.	67,454	18.87	37,54	10.50	35,754	10.00
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	62,794	17.40	30,67	76 8.50	28,871	8.00
T Bank, N.A.	63,302	17.70	30,39	91 8.50	28,604	8.00
Common Equity Tier 1 (to Risk Weighted Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	45,544	12.62	25,26	7.00	23,458	6.50
T Bank, N.A.	63,302	17.70	25,02	7.00	23,240	6.50
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)						
Tectonic Financial, Inc. (consolidated)	62,794	11.82	21,24	4.00	26,557	5.00
T Bank, N.A.	63,302	12.06	21,00	2 4.00	26,252	5.00
	22					

Dividend Restrictions. Banking regulations may limit the amount of dividends that may be paid. Approval by regulatory authorities is required if the effect of dividends declared (including those on the Series A preferred stock) would cause the regulatory capital of the Bank and/or the Company to fall below specified minimum levels. Approval is also required if dividends declared exceed the net profits for that year combined with the retained net profits for the preceding two years. As of June 30, 2022, approximately \$6.8 million was available for the declaration of dividends by the Bank to the Company without prior approval of regulatory agencies and still maintain its "well capitalized" status. In addition, as a Texas corporation, we are restricted under the Texas Business Organizations Code from paying dividends under certain conditions. Under Texas law, we cannot pay dividends to shareholders if the dividends exceed our surplus or if after giving effect to the dividends, we would be insolvent.

In addition to the regulatory requirements of the federal banking agencies, Sanders Morris and Tectonic Advisors are subject to the regulatory framework applicable to registered investment advisors under the SEC's Division of Investment Management, and additionally, Sanders Morris is regulated by FINRA, which, among other requirements, imposes minimums on its net regulatory capital.

#### **Note 14. Operating Segments**

The Company's reportable segments consist of "Banking," "Other Financial Services," and "HoldCo" operations.

The "Banking" segment consists of operations relative to the Company's full service banking operations, including providing depository and lending services to individual and business customers, and other related banking services, along with services provided through the factoring operations of the Bank's Integra division.

The "Other Financial Services" segment includes managed and directed brokerage, investment advisory services, including related trust company operations, third party administration, and life and disability insurance brokerage services to both individuals and businesses.

The "HoldCo" operations include the operations and subordinated debt held at the Bank's immediate parent, as well as the activities of the financial holding company which serves as TBI's parent.

The tables below present the financial information for each segment that is specifically identifiable, or based on allocations using internal methods, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, 2022		Banking	Other Financial Services	 HoldCo	<u>C</u>	onsolidated
Income Statement						
Total interest income	\$	7,504	\$ -	\$ -	\$	7,504
Total interest expense		697	-	219		916
Provision for loan losses		_	 _	 <u> </u>		_
Net interest income (loss) after provision for loan losses		6,807	=	(219)		6,588
Non-interest income		337	10,252	15		10,604
Depreciation and amortization expense		95	13	-		108
All other non-interest expense		3,525	 7,100	 546		11,171
Income (loss) before income tax	\$	3,524	\$ 3,139	\$ (750)	\$	5,913
Goodwill and other intangibles	\$	19,764	\$ 2,350	\$ -	\$	22,114
Total assets	\$	574,660	\$ 13,145	\$ 1,019	\$	588,824
	22					

(In thousands)		Banking		Other Financial Services		HoldCo	Consolidated	
Six Months Ended June 30, 2022		<u></u>						
Income Statement								
Total interest income	\$	15,052	\$	-	\$	-	\$	15,052
Total interest expense		1,369		-		438		1,807
Provision for loan losses		327				<u> </u>		327
Net-interest income (loss) after provision for loan losses		13,356		-		(438)		12,918
Non-interest income		593		19,955		15		20,563
Depreciation and amortization expense		190		28		-		218
All other non-interest expense		7,103		13,916	_	1,001		22,020
Income (loss) before income tax	\$	6.656	\$	6,011	\$	(1,424)	\$	11,243
Goodwill and other intangibles	\$	19,764	\$	2,350	\$	_	\$	22,114
Total assets	\$	574,660	\$	13,145	\$	1,019	\$	588,824
(In thousands)	Other Financial Banking Services		inancial		HoldCo	Consolidated		
Three Months Ended June 30, 2021								
Income Statement								
Total interest income	\$	6,216	\$	-	\$	-	\$	6,216
Total interest expense		669		-		219		888
Provision for loan losses		141			_	-		141
Net-interest income (loss) after provision for loan losses		5,406		- 0.4.50		(219)		5,187
Non-interest income		275		8,158		-		8,433
Depreciation and amortization expense		92		36		226		128
All other non-interest expense	Φ.	2,608	Φ.	5,761	Ф	336	Φ.	8,705
Income (loss) before income tax	\$	2,981	\$	2,361	\$	(555)	\$	4,787
Goodwill and other intangibles	\$	9,257	\$	2,350	\$	-	\$	11,607
Total assets	\$	546,818	\$	10,228	\$	376	\$	557,422
(In thousands) Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 Income Statement	<u>.</u>	Banking		Other Financial Services		HoldCo	Cor	solidated
Total interest income	\$	12,530	\$	-	\$	_	\$	12,530
Total interest expense	*	1,401	4	-	•	437	-	1,838
Provision for loan losses		569		-		-		569
Net-interest income (loss) after provision for loan losses		10,560			_	(437)		10,123
Non-interest income		459		17,303		85		17,847
Depreciation and amortization expense		184		74		-		258
All other non-interest expense		4,742		11,939		686		17,367
Income (loss) before income tax	\$	6,093	\$	5,290	\$	(1,038)	\$	10,345
Goodwill and other intangibles	\$	9,257	\$	2,350	\$	-	\$	11,607
Total assets	\$	546,818	\$		\$	376	\$	557,422
24								

#### Note 15. Fair Value of Financials Instruments

The fair value of an asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell that asset or paid to transfer that liability in an orderly transaction occurring in the principal market (or most advantageous market in the absence of a principal market) for such asset or liability. In estimating fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. Such valuation techniques are consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques include the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

- Level 1 Inputs Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to
  access at the measurement date.
- Level 2 Inputs Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or other means.
- Level 3 Inputs Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. The Company has no securities in the Level 1 or Level 3 inputs.

The following table summarizes securities available for sale measured at fair value on a recurring basis, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

(In thousands) As of June 30, 2022 Securities available for sale:	Level 1 Inputs		evel 2 nputs	evel 3 Inputs	_	otal Value
U.S. Treasuries	\$	-	\$ 1,965	\$	-	\$ 1,965
U.S. government agencies		-	13,690		-	13,690
Mortgage-backed securities		-	4,519		-	4,519
As of December 31, 2021						
Securities available for sale:						
U.S. government agencies	\$	-	\$ 15,402	\$	-	\$ 15,402
Mortgage-backed securities		-	1,754		-	1,754

Market valuations of our investment securities which are classified as level 2 are provided by an independent third party. The fair values are determined by using several sources for valuing fixed income securities. Their techniques include pricing models that vary based on the type of asset being valued and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. In accordance with the fair value hierarchy, the market valuation sources include observable market inputs and are therefore considered Level 2 inputs for purposes of determining the fair values.

The Company considers transfers between the levels of the hierarchy to be recognized at the end of related reporting periods. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, no assets for which fair value is measured on a recurring basis transferred between any levels of the hierarchy.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).

Financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the reported periods include impaired loans and loans held for sale.

Impaired loans. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were no impaired loans that were reduced by specific valuation allowances.

The significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in the fair value measurement of collateral for collateral-dependent impaired loans primarily relate to the specialized discounting criteria applied to the borrower's reported amount of collateral. The amount of the collateral discount depends upon the condition and marketability of the collateral, as well as other factors which may affect the collectability of the loan. As the Company's primary objective in the event of default would be to liquidate the collateral to settle the outstanding balance of the loan, collateral that is less marketable would receive a larger discount. During the reported periods, there were no discounts for collateral-dependent impaired loans.

The valuation of our not readily marketable investment securities which are classified as Level 3 are based on the Company's own assumptions and inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement, and are unobservable.

Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the Level 3 fair value measurements in their entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the assets. It is reasonably possible that a change in the estimated fair value for instruments measured using Level 3 inputs could occur in the future.

Loans held for sale. Loans held for sale include the guaranteed portion of SBA and USDA loans and are reported at the lower of cost or estimated fair value. Fair value for SBA and USDA loans is based on market indications available in the market. There were no impairments reported for the periods presented.

Non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the reported periods include other real estate owned which, upon initial recognition, was re-measured and reported at fair value through a charge-off to the allowance for loan losses. Additionally, foreclosed assets which, subsequent to their initial recognition, are re-measured at fair value through a write-down included in other non-interest expense. Regulatory guidelines require the Company to reevaluate the fair value of foreclosed assets on at least an annual basis. The fair value of foreclosed assets, upon initial recognition and impairment, are re-measured using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data. Estimated fair value of other real estate is based on appraisals. Appraisers are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by management. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, foreclosed assets totaled \$1.1 million consisting of two loans that were foreclosed during 2021 and were recorded at fair value. There were no foreclosed assets during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis or non-recurring basis are described as follows:

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, restricted securities, accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable. The estimated fair value of demand and savings deposits is the carrying amount since rates are regularly adjusted to market rates and amounts are payable on demand. For borrowed funds and variable rate loans or deposits that re-price frequently and fully, the estimated fair value is the carrying amount. For fixed rate loans or deposits and for variable rate loans or deposits with infrequent re-pricing, fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk. For loans held for sale, the estimated fair value is based on market indications for similar assets in the active market. The estimated fair value of other financial instruments and off-balance-sheet loan commitments approximate cost and are not considered significant to this presentation.

The Company adds a servicing asset when loans are sold and the servicing is retained, and uses the amortization method for the treatment of the servicing asset. The servicing asset is carried at lower of cost or fair value. Loan servicing assets do not trade in an active, open market with readily observable prices. Accordingly, fair value is estimated using a discounted cash flow model having significant inputs of discount rate, prepayment speed and default rate. Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, servicing rights are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company had no sale of loans and did not add any servicing assets. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company added servicing assets totaling \$19,000 in connection with the sale of \$1.1 million in loans. There was no allowance provision for servicing assets for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

FASB ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including those financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis or non-recurring basis. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for cash and cash equivalents and accrued interest. The methodologies for other financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis or non-recurring basis are discussed below.

Securities held to maturity. The securities in this category include PACE and PID/TIRZ investments. These investment contracts or bonds originate under a contractual obligation between the property owners, the local county administration, and a third-party administrator and sponsor. These investments have no readily determinable fair value.

Loans. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk. The fair value of fixed-rate loans and variable-rate loans which reprice on an infrequent basis is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the current interest rates at which similar loans with similar terms would be made to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Deposits. The fair values of demand deposits, savings deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand and, therefore, approximate their carrying amounts. The fair values for time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that utilizes interest rates currently being offered on time deposits with similar contractual maturities.

Borrowed Funds. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for short-term borrowings. The fair value of long-term fixed-rate borrowings is estimated using quoted market prices, if available, or by discounting future cash flows using current interest rates for similar financial instruments. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for variable-rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures that reprice quarterly.

Loan Commitments, Standby and Commercial Letters of Credit. Our lending commitments have variable interest rates and "escape" clauses if the customer's credit quality deteriorates. Therefore, the fair values of these items are not significant and are not included in the following table.

Carrying amounts and estimated fair values of other financial instruments by level of valuation input were as follows:

	June 30, 2022						
		arrying	_				
(In thousands)	<i>F</i>	Amount	r	Fair Value			
Financial assets:							
Level 1 inputs:							
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	41,513	\$	45,513			
Level 2 inputs:							
Securities available for sale		20,174		20,174			
Securities, restricted		3,485		3,485			
Loans held for sale		31,950		34,639			
Accrued interest receivable		1,785		1,785			
Level 3 inputs:							
Securities held to maturity		26,227		26,227			
Securities not readily marketable		100		100			
Loans, net		424,711		429,313			
Servicing asset		364		364			
Financial liabilities:							
Level 1 inputs:							
Non-interest bearing deposits		100,977		100,977			
Level 2 inputs:							
Interest bearing deposits		373,650		360,918			
Borrowed funds		12,000		12,000			
Accrued interest payable		516		516			
27							

	December 31, 2021 Carrying Estimated Amount Fair Value							
(In thousands)								
Financial assets:	 							
Level 1 inputs:								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 45,992	\$	45,992					
Level 2 inputs:	·		ŕ					
Securities available for sale	17,156		17,156					
Securities, restricted	2,432		2,432					
Loans held for sale	33,762		37,549					
Accrued interest receivable	2,268		2,268					
Level 3 inputs:								
Securities held to maturity	19,673		19,673					
Securities not readily marketable	100		100					
Loans, net	424,595		430,810					
Servicing asset	503		503					
Financial liabilities:								
Level 1 inputs:								
Non-interest bearing deposits	88,876		88,876					
Level 2 inputs:								
Interest bearing deposits	355,293		359,606					
Borrowed funds	46,521		46,521					
Accrued interest payable	561		561					

#### **Note 16. Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

FASB Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2022-02, "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures." ASU 2022-02 eliminates the accounting guidance for troubled debt restructurings in ASC Subtopic 310-40, Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors, while enhancing disclosure requirements for certain loan refinancings and restructurings by creditors when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. Additionally, ASU 2022-02 requires entities to disclose current-period gross write-offs by year of origination for financing receivables and net investments in leases within the scope of ASC Subtopic 3126-20, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses - Measured at Amortized Cost. ASU 2022-02 will be effective for us on January 1, 2023 though early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2022-02 is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements.

ASU 2016-13, "Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments." ASU 2016-13 requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization's portfolio. In addition, ASU 2016-13 amends the accounting for credit losses on available for sale debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. ASU 2016-13 became effective for most public companies on January 1, 2020, subject to a company's election to defer implementation due to the COVID-19 pandemic. On July 17, 2019, the FASB proposed to delay the implementation of the current expected credit loss standard ("CECL") for certain companies including smaller reporting companies ("SRCs") as defined by the SEC. The Company falls within the definition of an SRC under applicable rules promulgated by the SEC. The proposed delay by FASB was subject to a comment period. At the October 16, 2019 FASB meeting, the FASB voted unanimously to delay the effective date of CECL adoption for SRCs to January 1, 2023. The Company has developed processes for assessment and documentation, model development and validation. While the Company generally expects that the implementation of ASU 2016-13 may increase their allowance for loan losses balance, the adoption of the CECL methodology will be significantly influenced by the composition, characteristics and quality of the loan portfolio along with the prevailing economic conditions and forecasts as of the adoption date.

#### Note 17. Acquisition

On July 1, 2021, we, through our wholly-owned subsidiary TBI, acquired Integra through the merger of Integra with and into TBI, with TBI surviving the merger. Integra's activity will be reported within our Banking segment. Integra is a factoring company that provides financing to smaller transportation companies across the United States principally by purchasing their accounts receivable at a discount and then collecting such receivables at face value. We believe that the addition of this small business lending vertical will provide the Bank with additional breadth in its lending platform and enable the Bank to continue to prudently grow its balance sheet and generate relatively attractive returns on its assets.

Pursuant to the terms of and subject to the conditions set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between the Company and Integra (the "Merger Agreement"), the transaction provided for the payment to the members of Integra of (a) an amount of cash equal to (i) approximately \$2.5 million, subject to certain adjustments described in the Merger Agreement which totaled \$726,721, and (b) 453,203 shares of the Company's common stock. In addition, the Company incurred \$115,726 of expenses related to the acquisition of Integra, which is reported in non-interest expense on our consolidated statements of income.

A summary of the fair values of assets acquired, liabilities assumed, consideration transferred, and the resulting goodwill, which represents the expected synergies from the Integra merger, and is not deductible for tax purposes, is as follows:

#### (In thousands)

Assets acquired:	
Factored receivables	\$ 33,442
Other assets	270
Premises and equipment	24
Loans receivable	1,103
	34,839
Liabilities assumed:	
Deposits	2,535
Other liabilities	253
Borrowings	 28,927
	31,715
Fair value of net assets acquired	3,124
Consideration:	
Cash paid	3,185
Common stock	 10,650
Total consideration	13,835
Goodwill	\$ 10,711

The contractual value of the factored receivables acquired was \$34.3 million. The amount above represents the contractual value of the receivables less the purchased deferred discount of \$397,000 and the fair value adjustment of \$492,000. The value for the common stock was based on an earnings based multiple plus a control premium.

Supplemental Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The following table presents financial information regarding the former Integra operations included in the Company's consolidated Statements of Income for the six months ended June 30, 2022. In addition, the table presents unaudited condensed pro forma financial information assuming that the Integra acquisition was completed as of January 1, 2021. Integra was a subchapter S corporation and as such, income tax on its earnings was paid by its shareholders. The results shown below for the period prior to the acquisition include an estimate for income tax at the Company's statutory rate.

The table has been prepared for comparative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the actual results that would have been obtained had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2021, nor is it indicative of future results.

(In thousands)	Six Mont	for the ths ended 0, 2022	fo Six Mor	Consolidated or the nths Ended 30, 2022	Six N	orma Combined for the Months Ended ne 30, 2021
Net interest income	\$	3,735	\$	12,918	\$	12,496
Noninterest income		313		20,563		17,864
Noninterest expense		1,535		22,238		18,771
Net income after income taxes		1,986		9,026		8,998
	29					

#### Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 (this "Form 10-Q"), as well as with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on March 31, 2022 (the "2021 Form 10-K").

#### **Cautionary Notice Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

Statements contained in this report that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including our expectations, intentions, beliefs, or strategies regarding the future. These statements are often, but not always, made through the use of words or phrases such as "may," "should," "could," "predict," "potential," "believe," "will likely result," "expect," "anticipate," "seek," "estimate," "intend," "plan," "projection," "would" and "outlook," and similar expressions. Accordingly, we caution you that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable as of the date made, actual results may differ materially from those in or implied by such forward-looking statements due to the factors discussed under the section entitled "Risk Factors," in our 2021 Form 10-K, including, but not limited to, the following:

- changes in interest rates, including the recent significant increases in market interest rates experienced in the first half of 2022, which could negatively impact bond market values and result in a lower net book value;
- our ability to successfully manage the current rising market interest rate environment, our credit risk and the level of future non-performing assets and charge-offs:
- risks associated with the uncertain inflationary outlook in the United States and our market areas and its impact on market interest rates, the economy and credit
  quality;
- the potential for a recession in the United States and our market areas and the negative and adverse impact a recession would have on our earnings, capital and financial position resulting from higher losses on the Bank's loan and factored receivables portfolios; a decline in the equity and fixed income markets that would reduce assets under management and capital markets activity, thereby reducing the earnings at Sanders Morris and Tectonic Advisors, as well as earnings on trust assets at the Bank:
- changes in the United States economy generally and the regulatory response thereto;
- changes in the economy of the State of Texas, our primary market;
- risks associated with the ongoing COVID-19 global pandemic ("COVID-19"), or any current or future variants of COVID-19, including, among others, business disruption for our customers, customers' ability to fulfill their financial obligations to the Company, our employees' ability to conduct banking and other transactions, the response of governmental authorities to the COVID-19 pandemic, or any current or future variants thereof, and our participation in COVID-19-related government programs such as the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") administered by the Small Business Administration (the "SBA") and created under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the "CARES Act");
- risks associated with implementing aspects of our expansion strategy, whether through additional services and products or acquisitions;
- liquidity risks, including those related to having enough liquid assets to meet depositor demands;
- the need to hold more capital in order to comply with consolidated capital ratios;
- competition from other banks, financial institutions and wealth and investment management firms and our ability to retain our clients;
- the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses;
- risks associated with generating deposits from retail sources without a branch network so that we can fund our loan portfolio and growth;
- risks associated with higher cost deposits relative to our peer group, which has an impact on our net interest margin and profits;
- risks associated with having one referral source, Cain Watters & Associates, LLC ("Cain Watters"), comprise a substantial part of our business;
- our reliance on key personnel and the ability to attract and retain the personnel necessary to implement our business plan;
- risks specific to commercial loans and borrowers (particularly dental and SBA loans);
- our ability to continue to originate loans (including SBA loans);
- impairment of our goodwill or other intangible assets;
- claims and litigation pertaining to our fiduciary responsibilities;
- generating investment returns for our wealth management, brokerage and other customers that are satisfactory to them;
- our ability to maintain a strong core deposit base or other low-cost funding sources;
- our ability to manage our credit risk;

- regulatory scrutiny related to our loan portfolio, including commercial real estate;
- the earning capacity of our borrowers;
- fluctuation in the value of our investment securities;
- our inability to identify and address potential conflicts of interest;
- our ability to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting;
- the accuracy of estimates and assumptions;
- the development of an active, liquid market for the Series B preferred stock;
- fluctuations in the market price of the Series B preferred stock;
- our ability to raise additional capital, particularly during times of stress;
- the soundness of other counterparty financial institutions and certain securities brokerage firms;
- technological change in the banking, investment, brokerage and insurance industry;
- our ability to protect against and manage fraudulent activity, breaches of our information security, and cybersecurity attacks;
- our reliance on communications, information, operating and financial control systems technology and related services from third-party service providers;
- natural disasters and epidemics and pandemics, such as COVID-19, or any current or future variants thereof;
- the effects of terrorism and acts of war or threat thereof, including the current conflict in Ukraine, and efforts by the U.S. to combat it;
- environmental liabilities;
- regulation of the financial services industry;
- legislative changes or the adoption of tax reform policies;
- political instability and changes in tariffs and trade barriers;
- compliance with laws and regulations, supervisory actions, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act"), the
  Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief and Consumer Protection Act ("EGRRCPA"), capital requirements, the Bank Secrecy Act, anti-money laundering laws,
  consumer laws, and other statutes and regulations;
- regulation of broker-dealers and investment advisors;
- the enactment of regulations relating to privacy, information security and data protection;
- legal and regulatory examinations, proceedings, investigations and inquiries, fines and sanctions;
- future issuances of preferred stock or debt securities and its impact on the Series B preferred stock;
- our ability to manage our existing and future preferred stock and indebtedness;
- our ability to pay dividends;
- the continuation of securities analysts coverage of the company;
- our management and board of directors have significant control over our business;
- risks related to being a "controlled company" under NASDAQ rules;
- the costs and expenses of being a public company; and
- changes in the laws, rules, regulations, interpretations or policies relating to financial institutions, accounting, tax, trade, monetary and fiscal matters, including the policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Federal Reserve") and as a result of initiatives of the Biden administration.

In addition, financial markets and global supply chains may be adversely affected by the current or anticipated impact of military conflict, including the current Russian invasion of Ukraine, terrorism or other geopolitical events.

You should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statement reflects only information known to us as of the date on which it is made and we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict which will arise. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

#### Other Available Information

We file or furnish with the SEC annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and other reports required by Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Electronic copies of our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC's website at https://www.sec.gov. In addition, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements and other reports required by Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are available through our website, www.t.financial, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

The Company routinely posts important information for investors on its website, www.t.financial. The Company intends to use its website as a means of disclosing material non-public information and for complying with its disclosure obligations under SEC Regulation FD (Fair Disclosure). Accordingly, investors should monitor the Company's website, in addition to following the Company's press releases, SEC filings, public conference calls, presentations and webcasts.

Our website and the information contained on or accessible through our website is not incorporated by reference into, and is not a part of, this Form 10-Q.

#### General

We are a financial holding company headquartered in Dallas, Texas. We provide a wide array of financial products and services including banking, trust, investment advisory, securities brokerage, third party administration, qualified plan recordkeeping and insurance services to individuals, small businesses and institutions across the United States.

The following discussion and analysis presents our consolidated financial condition as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, and our consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes related thereto in this Form 10-Q and in the audited financial statements in our 2021 Form 10-K.

We operate through four main direct and indirect subsidiaries: (i) T Bancshares, Inc. ("TBI"), which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas on December 23, 2002 to serve as the bank holding company for T Bank, N.A. a national banking association (the "Bank"), (ii) Sanders Morris Harris LLC ("Sanders Morris"), a registered broker-dealer with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"), and registered investment advisor with the SEC, (iii) Tectonic Advisors, LLC ("Tectonic Advisors"), a registered investment advisor registered with the SEC focused generally on managing money for relatively large, affiliated institutions, and (iv) HWG Insurance Agency LLC ("HWG"), an insurance agency registered with the Texas Department of Insurance ("TDI").

#### **Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates**

We prepare consolidated financial statements based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") and to customary practices within the financial services industry. These policies, in certain areas, require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. While we base estimates on historical experience, current information and other factors deemed to be relevant, actual results could differ from those estimates.

We consider accounting estimates to be critical to reported financial results if (i) the accounting estimate requires management to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time we make the accounting estimate and (ii) different estimates that management reasonably could have used for the accounting estimate in the current period, or changes in the accounting estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Accounting policies related to the allowance for loan losses are considered to be critical as these policies involve considerable subjective judgment and estimation by management. Management has adopted a methodology to properly analyze and determine an adequate loan loss allowance, which includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 310, *Receivables*, and allowance allocations calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 450, *Contingencies*. The analysis is based on sound, reliable and well documented information and is designed to support an allowance that is adequate to absorb all estimated incurred losses in our loan portfolio. Relevant available information includes historical credit loss experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. While historical credit loss experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit losses, adjustments to historical loss information may be made for differences in current portfolio-specific risk characteristics, environmental conditions or other relevant factors. While management utilizes its best judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of our allowance accounts is dependent upon a variety of factors beyond our control, including the performance of our portfolios, the economy, changes in interest rates and the view of the regulatory authorities toward classification of assets. Refer to the 2021 Form 10-K for additional information regarding critical accounting policies.

#### Performance Summary

Net income available to common shareholders increased \$1.0 million, or 30.3%, to \$4.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022, compared to \$3.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021. Earnings per diluted common share were \$0.59 and \$0.50 for the three months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Net income available to common shareholders increased \$1.0 million, or 13.9%, to \$8.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022, compared to \$7.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021. Earnings per diluted common share were \$1.13 and \$1.09 for the six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The increases in net income available to common shareholders for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 resulted primarily from increases in net interest income and non-interest income, partly offset by an increase in noninterest expense.

For the three months ended June 30, 2022, annual return on average assets was 3.32%, compared to 2.71% for the same period in the prior year, and annual return on average equity was 21.48%, compared to 20.91% for the same period in the prior year. For the six months ended June 30, 2022, annual return on average assets was 3.14%, compared to 3.04% for the same period in the prior year, and annual return on average equity was 23.37%, compared to 26.11% for the same period in the prior year. The higher annual return on average assets ratios for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 was due to an increase in income which outpaced the increase in average assets compared to the same period in the prior year. The lower annual return on average equity ratios for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 was due to the increase in equity which outpaced the increase in income compared to the same period in the prior year. The growth in average equity between the two periods is primarily related to shares of Company common stock issued for the Company's acquisition of Integra Funding Solutions, LLC, a Texas limited liability company ("Integra"), on July 1, 2021.

Our accounting and reporting policies conform to GAAP and the prevailing practices in the banking industry. However, this Form 10-Q contains financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with GAAP, which includes return on average tangible common equity. We calculate return on average tangible common equity as net income available to common shareholders (net income less dividends paid on preferred stock) divided by average tangible common equity. We calculate average tangible common equity as average shareholders' equity less average goodwill, average core deposit intangible and average preferred stock. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure for tangible common equity is average total shareholders' equity. We believe these non-GAAP measures and ratios, when taken together with the corresponding GAAP measures and ratios, provide meaningful supplemental information regarding our performance. We believe investors benefit from referring to these non-GAAP measures and ratios in assessing our operating results and related trends, and when planning and forecasting future periods. However, these non-GAAP measures and ratios should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for or preferable to, measures and ratios prepared in accordance with GAAP.

The following table presents non-GAAP reconciliations of annual return on average tangible common equity:

(Dollars in thousands)	fo Thre Enc	for the for the for the Three Months Three Months Six Mo Ended June Ended June Ended		As of and for the ix Months nded June 30, 2022	As of and for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2021			
Income available to common shareholders (a)	\$	4,353	\$	3,329	\$	8,250	\$	7,239
Average shareholders' equity  Less: average goodwill	\$	88,534 21,440	\$	63,806 10,729	\$	87,051 21,440	\$	61,904 10,729
Less: average core deposit intangible		708		910		734		935
Less: average preferred stock		17,250		17,250		17,250		17,250
Average tangible common equity (b)	\$	49,136	\$	34,917	\$	47,627	\$	32,990
Annual return on average tangible common equity (a)/(b)		35.53%	)	38.24%	)	34.93%		44.25%

Total assets increased \$3.8 million, or 0.7%, to \$588.8 million as of June 30, 2022, from \$585.0 million as of December 31, 2021. This increase was primarily due to increases of \$3.0 million in securities available for sale and \$6.6 million in securities held to maturity, partly offset by decreases of \$4.5 million in cash and cash equivalents and \$1.8 million in loans held for sale. Substantially all loans outside of those made under the PPP are secured by specific collateral, including business assets, consumer assets, and commercial real estate.

Shareholders' equity increased \$6.0 million, or 7.1%, to \$90.8 million as of June 30, 2022, from \$84.8 million as of December 31, 2021. See analysis of shareholders' equity in the section captioned "Capital Resources and Regulatory Capital Requirements" included elsewhere in this discussion.

#### Results of Operations for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Details of the changes in the various components of net income are discussed below.

#### **Net Interest Income**

Net interest income is the difference between interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans, investment securities, and interest-bearing cash, and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Changes in net interest income result from changes in volume and spread, and are reflected in the net interest margin, as well as changes in average interest rates. Volume refers to the average dollar level of interestearning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Spread refers to the difference between the average yield on interest-earning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. Margin refers to net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets, and is influenced by the level and relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

The following tables present the changes in net interest income and identifies the changes due to differences in the average volume of interestearning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the changes due to changes in the average interest rate on those assets and liabilities. The changes in net interest income due to changes in both average volume and average interest rate have been allocated to the average volume change or the average interest rate change in proportion to the absolute amounts of the change in each.

Three Months Ended

356

Three Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

June 30, 2022 vs June 30, 2021 Increase (Decrease) Due to Change in Average Volume (In thousands) Rate **Total** 114 Interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold (57) 57 Securities 33 177 210 207 1,021 Loans, net of unearned discount (1) 814 Total earning assets 961 327 1,288 2 2 Savings and interest-bearing demand Money market deposit accounts 78 28 106 Time deposits (88)79 (9)FHLB and other borrowings 67 (138)(71)Total interest-bearing liabilities 57 (29)28 904 1,260

#### (1) Average loans include non-accrual.

Changes in net interest income

Net interest income increased \$1.3 million, or 24.5%, from \$5.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$6.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The increase in net interest income was primarily due to the increase in the average yield on loans, and to a lesser extent an increase in the average yield in the interest-bearing deposits (which are held at the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas (the "FRB")), and to an increase in the average volume of securities and loans. Net interest margin for the three months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 5.03% and 4.11%, respectively, an increase of 92 basis points.

The average volume of interest-earning assets increased \$6.1 million, or 1.2%, from \$519.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$525.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The average volume of securities increased \$18.6 million, or 73.8%, from \$25.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to \$43.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022, and the average volume of loans increased \$13.3 million, or 3.0%, from \$436.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$449.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The increases were partly offset by a decrease in the average volume of interest-bearing deposits of \$25.7 million, or 44.0%, from \$58.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$32.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The increase in the average volume of loans included increases of \$69.8 million for organic loan growth and \$34.5 million for factored receivables related to the Integra acquisition during the third quarter of 2021, partly offset by a \$91.1 million decrease of PPP loans. The average yield on interest-earning assets increased 92 basis points from 4.80% for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to 5.72% for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The average yield on interest earning assets was impacted by changes in market interest rates and changes in the mix of interest-earning assets. The average yield for loans increased 75 basis points from 5.51% for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to 6.26% for the three months ended June 30, 2022. During the three months ended June 30, 2022, we recognized \$1.9 million of interest income related to the factored receivables, with an average yield of 22.5%. During the three months ended June 30, 2022, we recognized \$3,000 in PPP related deferred fees (net of amortization of related deferred origination costs) as a yield adjustment and this amount is included in interest income on loans. This was a decrease of \$1.2 million from the same period in the prior year. As a result of the inclusion of these net fees in interest income, the average yield on PPP loans decreased to 1.2% for the three months ended June 30, 2022, from 6.1% for the same period in the prior year. The average yield on securities increased 52 basis points from 3.30% for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to 3.82% for the three months ended June 30, 2022, and the average yield on interestbearing deposits increased 78 basis points from 0.11% for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.89% for the three months ended June 30, 2022.

The average volume of interest-bearing liabilities decreased \$31.9 million, or 7.9%, from \$405.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The average volume of interest-bearing deposits increased \$55.5 million, or 18.5%, from \$299.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to \$355.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities increased 10 basis points from 0.88% for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.98% for the three months ended June, 2022. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing deposits decreased just 1 basis point from 0.79% for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.78% for the three months ended June, 2022. The average volume of non-interest bearing deposits increased \$28.3 million, or 39.6%, from \$71.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$99.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The average volume of FHLB and other borrowings decreased \$87.5 million, or 92.6%, from \$94.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 to \$6.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2022, consisting mostly of funding from the PPPLF, at an interest rate of 0.35%, used to fund the PPP loans. The average cost of FHLB and other borrowings increased 28 basis points from 0.35% for the three months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.63% for the three months ended June 30, 2022.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Six Months Ended June 30, 2022 vs June 30, 2021

	ounces, 2022 15 ounces, 2021						
(In thousands)		Increase (Decrease) Due to Change in					
	·	Average					
		Rate		Volume		Total	
Interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold	\$	74	\$	(1)	\$	73	
Securities		106		293		399	
Loans, net of unearned discount (1)		1,629		421		2,050	
Total earning assets		1,809		713		2,522	
Savings and interest-bearing demand		2		3		5	
Money market deposit accounts		72		57		129	
Time deposits		(200)		154		(46)	
FHLB and other borrowings		29		(148)		(119)	
Total interest-bearing liabilities		(97)		66		(31)	
Changes in net interest income	\$	1,906	\$	647	\$	2,553	

(1) Average loans include non-accrual.

Net interest income increased \$2.6 million, or 24.0%, from \$10.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 to \$13.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The increase in net interest income was primarily due to an increase in the average yield on loans and an increase in the average volume of loans, and to a lesser extent an increase in average volume of securities and a decrease in the average rate paid on time deposits. Net interest margin for the six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 5.01% and 4.28%, respectively, an increase of 73 basis points.

The average volume of interest-earning assets increased \$29.1 million, or 5.8%, from \$503.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 to \$532.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021. The average volume of securities increased \$16.3 million, or 63.7%, from \$25.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$41.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022, and the average volume of loans increased \$13.4 million, or 3.1%, from \$437.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 to \$450.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The increase in the average volume of loans included increases of \$66.2 million for organic loan growth and \$35.8 million for factored receivables related to the Integra acquisition during the third quarter of 2021, partly offset by a \$85.6 million decrease of PPP loans. The average yield on interest-earning assets increased 68 basis points from 5.02% for the six months ended June 30, 2021 to 5.70% for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The average yield on interest earning assets was impacted by changes in market interest rates and changes in the mix of interest-earning assets. The average yield for loans increased 76 basis points from 5.60% for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to 6.36% for the six months ended June 30, 2022. During the six months ended June 30, 2022, we recognized \$175,000 in PPP related deferred fees (net of amortization of related deferred origination costs) as a yield adjustment and this amount is included in interest income on loans. This was a decrease of \$2.7 million from the same period in the prior year. As a result of the inclusion of these net fees in interest income on loans. This was a decreased to 3.5% for the six months ended June 30, 2022, from 6.8% for the same period in the prior year. The average yield on securities increased 84 basis points from 2.78% for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to 3.62% for the six months ended June 30, 2022, and the average yield on interest-bearing deposits increased 37 basis points fr

The average volume of interest-bearing liabilities decreased \$14.2 million, or 3.6%, from \$398.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The average volume of interest-bearing deposits increased \$57.6 million, or 19.3%, from \$297.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$355.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities increased 2 basis points from 0.93% for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.95% for the six months ended June, 2022. The average interest rate paid on interest-bearing deposits decreased 9 basis points from 0.85% for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.76% for the six months ended June 30, 2022. Non-interest bearing deposits increased \$33.9 million, or 52.8%, from \$64.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$98.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$98.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to \$16.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2022, consisting mostly of funding from the PPPLF program, at an interest rate of 0.35%, used to fund the PPP loans. The average cost of FHLB and other borrowings increased 7 basis points from 0.35% for the six months ended June 30, 2021, to 0.42% for the six months ended June 30, 2022.

The following table sets forth our average balances of assets, liabilities and shareholders' equity, in addition to the major components of net interest income and our net interest margin, for the three months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

				,	Three Months <b>E</b>	Ende	ed June 30,			
			2	2022						
(In thousands, except percentages)		Average Balance	In	terest	Average Yield		Average Balance		Interest	Average Yield
Assets										
Interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold	\$	32,734	\$	73	0.89%	\$	58,444	\$	16	0.11%
Securities		43,756		417	3.82		25,197		207	3.30
Loans, net of unearned discount (1)		449,289		7,014	6.26		436,020		5,993	5.51
Total earning assets		525,779		7,504	5.72		519,661		6,216	4.80
Cash and other assets		51,310					32,761			
Allowance for loan losses	<u> </u>	(4,322)					(3,193)			
Total assets	\$	572,767				\$	549,229			
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity										
Savings and interest-bearing demand	\$	17,952		11	0.25%	\$	15,371		9	0.23%
Money market deposit accounts		130,007		206	0.64		112,089		100	0.36
Time deposits		207,047		469	0.91		172,000		478	1.11
Total interest-bearing deposits		355,006		686	0.78		299,460	-	587	0.79
FHLB and other borrowings		6,964		11	0.63		94,455		82	0.35
Subordinated notes		12,000		219	7.32		12,000		219	7.32
Total interest-bearing liabilities		373,970		916	0.98		405,915		888	0.88
Non-interest-bearing deposits		99,754					71,547			
Other liabilities		10,509					7,961			
Total liabilities		484,233					485,426			
Shareholders' equity		88,534					63,806			
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$	572,767				\$	549,229			
Net interest income			\$	6,588				\$	5,328	
Net interest spread					4.74%					3.92%
Net interest margin					5.03%					4.11%

(1) Includes non-accrual loans.

The following table sets forth our average balances of assets, liabilities and shareholders' equity, in addition to the major components of net interest income and our net interest margin, for the six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

	Six Months Ended June 30,											
			2	2022					2021			
(In thousands, except percentages)		Average Balance	In	terest	Average Yield		Average Balance		Interest	Average Yield		
Assets												
Interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold	\$	39,973	\$	94	0.47%	6\$	40,555	\$	21	0.10%		
Securities		41,873		752	3.62		25,566		353	2.78		
Loans, net of unearned discount (1)	<u> </u>	450,754		14,206	6.36		437,395		12,156	5.60		
Total earning assets		532,600		15,052	5.70		503,516		12,530	5.02		
Cash and other assets		50,685					31,951					
Allowance for loan losses		(4,226)					(3,070)					
Total assets	\$	579,059				\$	532,397					
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity		,										
Savings and interest-bearing demand	\$	16,275		21	0.26%	6 \$	13,740		16	0.23%		
Money market deposit accounts		132,542		327	0.50		109,602		198	0.36		
Time deposits		206,617		988	0.96		174,470		1,034	1.20		
Total interest-bearing deposits		355,434		1,336	0.76		297,812		1,248	0.85		
FHLB and other borrowings		16,459		34	0.42		88,318		153	0.35		
Subordinated notes		12,000		437	7.34		12,000		437	7.34		
Total interest-bearing liabilities		383,893		1,807	0.95		398,130		1,838	0.93		
Non-interest-bearing deposits		98,117					64,205					
Other liabilities		9,998					8,158					
Total liabilities		492,008					470,493					
Shareholders' equity		87,051					61,904					
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$	579,059				\$	532,397					
Net interest income			\$	13,245				\$	10,692			
Net interest spread					4.75%	6				4.09%		
Net interest margin					5.01%	ó				4.28%		

## **Provision for Loan Losses**

There was no provision for loan losses for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The provision for loan losses totaled \$141,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2021. For the six months ended June 30, 2022, the provision for loan losses totaled \$327,000, compared to \$569,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2021. We determined a provision for loan losses that we consider sufficient to maintain an allowance to absorb probable losses inherent in our portfolio as of the balance sheet date. Nevertheless, there is continued uncertainty in the forecasted economic conditions due to the rising interest rate environment and persistent high inflation levels, and additional or reversal provisions for loan losses may be necessary in future periods.

For additional information concerning this determination, see the section captioned "Allowance for Loan Losses" elsewhere in this discussion.

#### Non-Interest Income

The components of non-interest income were as follows:

	Thi	ree Months	Six Months Ended June 30,					
(In thousands)		2022	2021		2022		2021	
Trust income	\$	1,557	\$ 1,532	\$	3,154	\$	2,972	
Gain on sale of loans		-	101		-		101	
Advisory income		3,358	3,276		6,932		6,293	
Brokerage income		3,712	2,028		6,183		4,591	
Service fees and other income		1,889	1,408		4,105		3,714	
Rental income		88	 88		189		176	
Total	\$	10,604	\$ 8,433	\$	20,563	\$	17,847	

Total non-interest income for the three months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$2.2 million, or 25.7%, and \$2.7 million, or 15.2%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. Material changes in the various components of non-interest income are discussed below.

Trust Income. Trust income is earned for trust services on the value of managed and non-managed assets held in custody. Volatility in the bond and equity markets impacts the market value of trust assets and the related fees. Trust income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$25,000, or 1.6%, and increased \$182,000, or 6.1%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increase in trust income between the periods is due to an increase in the average market value of the trust assets for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 compared to the three and six months ended June 30, 2021. The increase in the average market value of the trust assets between the two periods was primarily due to an increase in net flows of assets, which offset a decrease in average market values of trust assets from market declines during early 2022. Such decrease deepened during the three months ended June 30, 2022 and is attributed to the Federal Open Market Committee of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System raising their target benchmark interest rate during the three months ended June 30, 2022, and the ensuing increases in market interest rates during the period. In addition, asset values during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 reflected the continued uncertainty related to the economic impacts of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, which led to volatility in asset values, negatively impacting trust income, whereas the uncertainty around the COVID-19 pandemic abated during the remainder of 2021. Volatility related to impacts of geo-political instability related to the war in Ukraine, regulatory action, including further increases in market interest rates by the Federal Reserve in response to the persistence of the inflationary environment in the United States, or continuing effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, including supply-chain disruptions, all of which are likely to impact the bond and equity markets, could result in future net decreases in the average values of

Gain on sale of loans. Gain on sale of loans is generally gain on sales of the guaranteed portion of loans within our SBA loan portfolio. Gain on sale of loans decreased \$101,000 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, when there were no loans sold and therefore no gain on sale of loans, compared to the same period in the prior year, when there was gain on sale of loans of \$101,000 in each the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, resulting from the sale of \$1.1 million of SBA loans.

Advisory income. Advisory fees are typically based on a percentage of the underlying average asset values for a given period, where each percentage point represents 100 basis points. These revenues are of a recurring nature, but are directly affected by increases and decreases in the values of the underlying assets. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, advisory income increased \$82,000, or 2.5%, and \$639,000, or 10.2%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increase in advisory income between the two periods is due to an increase in the average market value of the advisory assets for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 as compared to the same periods in the prior year. Similar to our trust income, changes in the value of our assets under management throughout 2021 and during the first quarter of 2022 offset a decrease in average market values of trust assets from market declines during the six months ended June 30, 2022, resulting in a net increase in the average market value of our advisory assets. This was partially due to a decrease in volatility related to decreased uncertainty as to the effects of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic between the two periods, which resulted in less pressure on asset values and therefore less pressure on advisory income from factors related to the COVID-19 pandemic. As with trust income, volatility related to regulatory action, including further increases in market interest rates by the Federal Reserve in response to the persistence of the inflationary environment in the United States, as well as supply chain disruptions related to geo-political instability, including the war in Ukraine, and/or disruptions in the supply chain related to continuing world-wide effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, are likely to impact the financial markets and the value of and/or net inflows to our assets under management, potentially decreasing our advisory income.

Brokerage income. Brokerage revenues are generally based on a per share fee or commission to trade a share of a particular stock, bond or other security. In addition, brokerage revenues, in this context, include private placements, participation in syndication of public offerings, and certain other brokerage revenues, including interest earned on margin lending. Brokerage revenue is dependent on the volume of trading, and on private placement and syndication activity during the period, and in the case of margin lending, on interest rates. Brokerage income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$1.7 million, or 83.0%, and \$1.6 million, or 34.7%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The vast majority of the increase was related to an increase in commission income from private placement activity of \$1.7 million and \$2.0 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, from a recovery in private placement activity from the economic uncertainty that persisted during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 from the COVID-19 pandemic and dampened private offering activity, and also influenced by the possibility of further increases in interest rates leading to market volatility later in 2022. In addition, income from money market rebates and margin lending increased \$155,000 and \$134,000, and \$156,000 and \$280,000, respectively, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, related to increases in interest rates and rising cash balances, increasing the availability of funds and related margin lending and corresponding revenue. Commissions from options trading also increased by \$166,000 and \$217,000 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, over the same periods in the prior year. These increases were offset by a decrease in brokerage commissions from general over-the-counter trading of \$386,000 and \$1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, as well as other immaterial fluctuations in brokerage income netting to a decrease of \$89,000 and an increase of \$15,000 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively compared to the same periods in the prior year. Private offering activity in particular did recover somewhat during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, but expectations of economic disruption related to geo-political factors and further increases in market interest rates by the Federal Reserve Reserve in response to the persistence of the inflationary environment in the United States, among other factors, have led to economic uncertainty, which has the potential to decrease offering activity and general brokerage activity in future periods given price uncertainty in the face of volatile markets.

The table below reflects a rollforward of our client assets from June 30, 2021 through June 30, 2022, which includes both advisory and brokerage assets, and the inflows and outflows and net market appreciation from December 31, 2020 through June 30, 2022. Our brokerage and advisory assets experienced a decrease of approximately \$312.4 million, or 5.9%, between June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, related to positive net flows offset by market depreciation.

(In thousands)	Client Assets
As of December 31, 2020	\$ 4,524,376
Client inflows	1,515,091
Client outflows	 (1,299,643)
Net flows	215,448
Market appreciation	549,635
As of June 30, 2021	\$ 5,289,459
Client inflows	1,127,536
Client outflows	(904,112)
Net flows	223,424
Market appreciation	96,429
As of December 31, 2021	\$ 5,609,312
Client inflows	1,750,576
Client outflows	(1,247,399)
Net flows	503,177
Market depreciation	(1,135,447)
As of June 30, 2022	\$ 4,977,042

Service fees and other income. Service fees includes fees for deposit-related services, loan and factored receivables servicing, third-party administration fees, and other income. Service fees and other income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$481,000, or 34.2%, and \$391,000, or 10.5%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 over the same periods in the prior year were the result of increases in third party pension administration fees from the Bank's Nolan division of \$347,000 and \$314,000, respectively and increases in the servicing fees from the Bank's Integra factoring division of \$159,000 and \$313,000, respectively, which was acquired effective July 1, 2021 and therefore had no revenue during the same periods in the prior year, as well as an increase in income distributions from an interest in securities not readily marketable of \$14,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2022. These increases were offset for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 by decreases in net loan servicing fees of \$2,000 and \$107,000, respectively, consulting fees of \$34,000 and \$56,000, respectively, and from losses on errors of \$11,000 and \$44,000, respectively, over the same periods in the prior year, as well as a decrease in income distributions from an interest in securities not readily marketable of \$71,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2022 over the same period in the prior year. Immaterial fluctuations accounted for the remaining differences. The increase in third-party administration fees for the periods was primarily due to timing differences in completion of plan administration work compared to the same periods in the earlier year, during which the COVID-19 pandemic and related shutdowns led to a slowdown in submission of records from plan sponsors, delaying completion of work, as well as from an increase in third party administration clients.

Rental income. The Company receives monthly rental income from tenants leasing space in the Bank building. Rental income for the three months ended June 30, 2022 showed no material variance, and rental income for the six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$13,000, or 7.4%. The increase was primarily due to a new tenant moving into vacant space during the second quarter 2021.

#### Non-Interest Expense

The components of non-interest expense were as follows:

	Tł	ree Months l	Six Months Ended June 30,					
(In thousands)		2022	2021		2022		2021	
Salaries and employee benefits	\$	7,879	\$ 5,923	\$	15,335	\$	11,789	
Occupancy and equipment		422	392		873		819	
Trust expenses		560	595		1,158		1,159	
Brokerage and advisory direct costs		498	491		1,026		997	
Professional fees		353	332		753		782	
Data processing		221	266		390		470	
Other		1,346	834		2,703		1,609	
Total	\$	11,279	\$ 8,833	\$	22,238	\$	17,625	

Total non-interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$2.4 million, or 27.7%, and \$4.6 million, or 26.2%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year, primarily due to increases in salaries and employee benefits, trust expenses, other expenses, and professional fees, as well as in data processing fees, which were partially offset by a decrease in depreciation expense within our occupancy and equipment expense and in brokerage and advisory direct costs. Material changes in the various components of non-interest income are discussed below.

Salaries and employee benefits. Salaries and employee benefits for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$2.0 million, or 33.0%, and \$4.5 million, or 30.1%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases were primarily due to increases in bonuses, salaries, and related payroll expenses in our Banking segment, the majority of which are related to the increase staff from the acquisition of the Integra factoring division, and in our Other Financial Services segment, primarily from increases in incentive bonuses and earnouts at Sanders Morris Harris, and increase in staff and merit increases in the Bank's Nolan division, Tectonic Advisors and the Bank's Trust department. In addition, health insurance and other employee benefits costs increased for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 across the Company by \$99,000 and \$204,000, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year due primarily to increases in headcount and rate increases. The increases in salary, bonus, and other related payroll costs during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 in our Banking segment of \$546,000 and \$1.5 million, respectively, related to increases of \$511,000 and \$1.0 million from the acquisition of the Bank's Integra division in July 2021, and increases of \$36,000 and \$480,000 elsewhere in our Banking segment, related to merit increases in salaries and an increase in headcount, including within the Bank's SBA division. Salaries and bonuses in our Other Financial Services segment increased \$1.2 million and \$1.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year, of which \$1.0 million and \$1.1 million, respectively, is related to increases in commissions, incentive bonuses and earnouts related to increases in brokerage and private placement activity, \$93,000 and \$191,000 is related to Tectonic Advisors for increases in headcount in our investment operations team resulting from increases in net flows of assets under management and merit raises, \$44,000 and \$347,000 is related to the Bank's Nolan division for increases in headcount, promotions and merit increases, and production related bonuses, and \$31,000 and \$41,000 is related to the Bank's Trust department for increases in headcount and merit increases and promotions. In addition, stock compensation expense across the Company increased by \$12,000 and \$13,000 over the same periods in the prior year.

Occupancy and equipment expense. Occupancy and equipment expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$30,000, or 7.7%, and \$54,000, or 6.6%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases were related to increases totaling \$55,000 and \$126,000 at our Banking segment, offset by decreases of \$25,000 and \$72,000 in our Other Financial Services segment. The increases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 at our Banking segment included increases of \$39,000 and \$89,000 related to the acquisition of the Bank's Integra division in July 2021, as well as increases in the Bank's facilities expense of \$16,000 and \$37,000, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The decreases of in our Other Financial Services segment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 included decreases in depreciation expense of \$23,000 and \$45,000 and in facilities expense of \$24,000 and \$35,000, offset by individually immaterial fluctuations netting to increases of \$22,000 and \$8,000, compared to the same periods in the prior year.

Trust expenses. Trust expenses are advisory fees paid to a fund advisor to advise the Company on the common trust funds managed by the Company, and are based on the value of the assets held in custody. Volatility in the bond and equity markets impacts the market value of trust assets and the related expenses. The monthly advisory fees are assessed based on the market value of assets at month-end. Trust expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 decreased \$35,000, or 5.9%, and \$1,000, or less than 1%, compared to the same periods in the prior year due to a decrease in the value of trust assets for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 over the value during the same period in the prior year. This was due to a decrease in the valuation of trust assets, primarily during the three months ended June 30, 2022, which was partially offset by the increase in asset values and net flows earlier in 2022, compared to the same periods in the prior year.

Brokerage and advisory direct costs. Brokerage and advisory direct costs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$7,000, or 1.4%, and \$29,000, or 2.9%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 related primarily to increases in information services fees at Tectonic Advisors of \$24,000 and \$54,000, respectively, which were offset by a decrease in clearing firm service fees at Sanders Morris of \$21,000 and \$42,000, combined with other individually immaterial fluctuations at Sanders Morris, including HWG, netting to decreases of \$17,000 and \$25,000, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year.

Professional fees. Professional fees, which include legal, consulting, audit and tax fees, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$21,000, or 6.3%, and decreased \$29,000, or 3.7%, compared the same periods in the prior year. The increase for the three months ended June 30, 2022, was the result of increases in audit and tax consulting fees totaling \$75,000, the majority of which was in our Holdco segment related to an increase in complexity of our annual audit from an increase in our activity overall, offset by a decrease in legal and professional fees of \$15,000 and \$40,000, respectively, from decreases in consulting fees related to our participant directed plan services team, and increases in our legal fees during the same period in the prior year related to the acquisition of Integra. The decrease for the six months ended June 30, 2022 related to an increase in audit and audit and tax consulting services of \$108,000, shared across all segments related to the increase in complexity of our annual audit and tax preparation services, which was partially offset by decreases in professional fees of \$115,000, a decrease of \$137,000 at the Bank's trust department primarily due to a decrease in consulting fees related to our participant directed plan services team, where staff increases have allowed us to reduce our reliance on consultants, and a decrease in legal fees \$22,000 compared to the same period in the prior year related primarily to the acquisition of Integra.

Data processing. Data processing includes costs related to the Company's operating systems. Data processing expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 decreased \$45,000, or 16.9%, and \$80,000, or 17.0%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The decreases were the result of decreases of \$55,000 and \$97,000 in our Banking segment, offset by increases of \$11,000 and \$17,000 in our Other Financial Services segment. The decreases in our Banking segment were primarily related to the conversion of the Bank's core accounting system during the same periods in the prior year, which increased expense during the earlier periods, and the offsetting increases were primarily related to increases at the Bank's trust division of \$9,000 and \$20,000, and other immaterial fluctuations.

Other. Other expenses include costs for insurance, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") and Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC") assessments, director fees, regulatory filing fees related to our brokerage business, business travel, management fees, and other operational expenses. Other expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$512,000, or 61.4%, and \$1.1 million, or 68.0%, compared to the same period in the prior year. The increases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 included increases of \$291,000 and \$630,000 in our Banking segment, of \$112,000 and \$272,000 in our Other Financial Services segment, and in our HoldCo segment of \$109,000 and \$191,000, respectively. The increases in our Banking segment include increases of \$134,000 and \$257,000 related to other expenses at the Bank's Integra division which was acquired in July 2021, and includes increases in marketing and advertising costs of \$35,000 and \$74,000, correspondent bank charges of \$45,000 and \$76,000, software costs of \$10,000 and \$22,000, and other individually immaterial operating costs of \$44,000 and \$86,000, respectively. Other increases in our Banking segment included increases of \$29,000 and \$118,000 in software licenses, of \$4,000 and \$40,000 in employee recruitment related primarily to growth, and other individually immaterial increases. The increases of \$112,000 and \$272,000 in our Other Financial Services segment were related to increases in our marketing, advertising and public relations costs of \$28,000 and \$117,000, which includes marketing initiatives at Tectonic Advisors related to assets under management attributable to Cain Watters clients, and other marketing initiatives across the Company, as well as increases in travel, meals, and lodging of \$20,000 and \$46,000, and net increases of \$44,000 and \$63,000 in software, licenses, and computer services related to technology initiatives across the company, and other individually smaller fluctuations which increased other expenses by \$20,000 and \$46,000, respectively. The increases of \$109,000 and \$191,000 in our HoldCo segment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 were primarily the result of increases of \$64,000 and \$136,000 in marketing and public relations initiatives across the Company, an increase in Texas franchise tax expense of \$25,000 for each the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, as well as other immaterial fluctuations netting to increases of \$31,000 and \$20,000 compared to the same periods in the prior year.

#### **Income Taxes**

Income tax expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 was approximately \$1.2 million and \$2.2 million, respectively, compared to \$1.1 million and \$2.3 million, respectively, for the same periods in the prior year. The effective income tax rate was 19.8% and 19.7% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, compared to 22.4% and 22.5%, respectively, for the same periods in the prior year.

#### **Segment Reporting**

We have three operating segments: Banking, Other Financial Services and HoldCo. Our primary operating segments are Banking and Other Financial Services.

Our banking operating segment includes both commercial and consumer banking services, and factoring services through the Bank's Integra division. Commercial banking services are provided primarily to small to medium-sized businesses and their employees, which includes a wide array of lending and cash management products. Consumer banking services include lending and depository services. Factoring services are provided primarily to small over-the-road trucking businesses.

Our other financial services segment includes Tectonic Advisors, Sanders Morris, the Bank's Trust Division, which includes the Nolan division and a participant directed recordkeeping team, and HWG. Through these business divisions, we offer investment advisory and brokerage services to individuals and businesses, private trust services, and financial management services, including personal wealth management, retirement plan design and administrative services, and insurance brokerage services.

A third operating segment, HoldCo, includes the Bank's immediate parent and related subordinated debt, as well as operations of the financial holding company that serves as parent for the group overall. Our principal source of revenue is dividends from our subsidiaries.

The following table presents key metrics related to our segments as of the dates indicated:

		Tł	ree	Months E	nded	June 30, 2	2022		Six Months Ended June 30, 2022								
				Other							(	Other					
			Fi	nancial							Fi	nancial					
(In thousands)	Ba	nking	S	ervices	Н	oldCo	Co	nsolidated	В	anking	S	ervices	I	<b>IoldCo</b>	Cor	solidated	
Revenue(1)	\$	7,144	\$	10,252	\$	(204)	\$	17,192	\$	14,276	\$	19,955	\$	(423)	\$	33,808	
Income (Loss ) Before Taxes	\$	3,524	\$	3,139	\$	(750)	\$	5,913	\$	6,656	\$	6,011	\$	(1,424)	\$	11,243	

		Tl	hree l	Months E	nded	June 30,	2021			S	ix M	onths En	ded J	June 30, 20	)21	
			(	Other							(	Other				
			Fi	nancial							Fi	nancial				
(In thousands)	Ba	nking	S	ervices	Н	oldCo	Co	nsolidated	В	anking	S	ervices	H	IoldCo	Con	solidated
Revenue(1)	\$	5,822	\$	8,158	\$	(219)	\$	13,761	\$	11,588	\$	17,303	\$	(352)	\$	28,539
Income (loss) before taxes	\$	2,981	\$	2,361	\$	(555)	\$	4,787	\$	6,093	\$	5,290	\$	(1,038)	\$	10,345

(1) Net interest income plus non-interest income

# Banking

Income before taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$543,000, or 18.2%, and \$563,000, or 9.2%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increase during the three months ended June 30, 2022 was primarily the result of a \$1.3 million increase in net interest income, a \$141,000 decrease in the provision for loan losses, and a \$62,000 increase in non-interest income, partly offset by a \$920,000 increase in non-interest expense. The increase during the six months ended June 30, 2022 was primarily the result of a \$2.6 million increase in net interest income, a \$242,000 decrease in the provision for loan losses, and a \$134,000 increase in non-interest income, partly offset by a \$2.4 million increase in non-interest expense.

Net interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$1.3 million, or 22.7%, and \$2.6 million, or 22.9%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increase in net interest income was primarily due to the increase in the average yield on loans, and to a lesser extent an increase in the average yield in the interest-bearing deposits (which are held at the FRB), and to an increase in the average volume of securities and loans. The average yield on interest earning assets was impacted by changes in market interest rates and changes in the mix of interest-earning assets. See the analysis of net interest income included in the section captioned "Net Interest Income" included elsewhere in this discussion.

There was no provision for loan losses for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The provision for loan losses totaled \$141,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2021. For the six months ended June 30, 2022, the provision for loan losses totaled \$327,000, compared to \$569,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2021. Nevertheless, there is continued uncertainty in the forecasted economic conditions due to the rising interest rate environment and persistent high inflation levels, and additional or reversal provisions for loan losses may be necessary in future periods. See "Allowance for Loan Losses" included elsewhere in this discussion.

Non-interest income for the three months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$62,000, or 22.5%, compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase was primarily due to the recording of \$159,000 for factoring service fees for the three months ended June 30, 2022, related to the Integra acquisition during the third quarter of 2021, partly offset by a \$101,000 decrease in gain on sale of loans. Non-interest income for the six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$134,000, or 29.2%, compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase was primarily due to the recording of \$313,000 for factoring service fees for the six months ended June 30, 2022, related to the Integra acquisition during the third quarter of 2021, a \$16,000 increase in deposit service income and a \$13,000 increase in rental income, partly offset by a \$107,000 decrease in net loan servicing income and a \$101,000 decrease in gain on sale of loans. See the analysis of non-interest income included in the section captioned "Non-Interest Income" included elsewhere in this discussion.

Non-interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$920,000, or 34.1%, and \$2.4 million, or 48.1%, respectively, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases included salaries and employee benefits of \$621,000 and \$1.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, for annual merit increases and increases in staff (including \$566,000 and \$1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, for the addition of Integra), and incentive bonuses, occupancy and equipment expense of \$54,000 and \$125,000 for the three and six months, respectively, (including \$48,000 and \$110,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, for the addition of Integra), professional fees of \$9,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2022 (which was for the addition of Integra) and \$47,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2022 (which includes \$18,000 for the addition of Integra) and \$33,000 for legal and audit fees, and other expenses of \$291,000 and \$630,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively. The increase for the three months ended June 30, 2022 includes \$120,000 for the addition of Integra, \$40,000 for software development, \$40,000 for other real estate expenses, \$23,000 for FDIC insurance premiums, and a net increase of \$68,000 for various other expenses. The increase for the six months ended June 30, 2022 includes \$232,000 for the addition of Integra, \$135,000 for software development, \$62,000 for other real estate expenses, \$41,000 for employee recruitment, \$44,000 for FDIC insurance premiums, and a net increase of \$116,000 for various other expenses. The increases were partly offset by decreases in data processing of \$55,000 and \$97,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, (related to discount credits received for the Bank's core system conversion during March of 2021 which were first applied to conversion cost during 2021 and applied to data processing expense du

## Other Financial Services

Income before taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$778,000, or 33.0%, and \$721,000, or 13.6%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 were the result of increases of \$2.1 million and \$2.6 million in non-interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, respectively, offset by increases of \$1.3 million and \$1.9 million in non-interest expense, respectively.

Non-interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$2.1 million, or 25.7%, and \$2.6 million, or 15.3%, compared to the same period in the prior year. The increases were primarily due to increases in brokerage income totaling \$1.7 million and \$1.6 million, respectively, related to a sharp increase in commissions earned from private placement activity for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 compared to those in the same periods in the prior year, and in trust and advisory income totaling \$107,000 and \$821,000, respectively, related to net inflows to our assets under management throughout 2021, as well as continued uncertainty during the same periods in the prior year as to the effects of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, which decreased asset values in those earlier periods. In addition, service fees and other income increased \$302,000 and \$239,000, respectively, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, compared to the same periods in the prior year related to increases in third party pension administration fees from the Bank's Nolan division of \$347,000 and \$314,000, which were offset by decreases in consulting fees of \$34,000 and \$56,000, and from losses on errors of \$11,000 and \$44,000, respectively, and other immaterial differences. See also the analysis of non-interest income included in the section captioned "Non-Interest Income" included elsewhere in this discussion.

Non-interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$1.3 million, or 22.7%, and \$1.9 million, or 16.1%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. These increases were primarily related to increases in salaries and employee benefits of \$1.2 million and \$1.8 million, respectively, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, and increases of \$112,000 and \$272,000, respectively, in other expenses. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, these increases were offset by decreases in occupancy and equipment expense of \$25,000 and in trust expense of \$35,000. For the three months ended June 30, 2022 compared to the same period in the prior year, there were other immaterial increases in brokerage and advisory direct costs, professional fees, and data processing totaling \$22,000. For the six months ended June 30, 2022 compared to the same period in the prior year, the increases in salaries and employee benefits and other expenses were offset by decreases in occupancy and equipment expense of \$72,000 and in professional fees of \$75,000, related to a decrease in consulting fees in our participant directed plan services team related to staffing increases, which reduced our reliance upon consultants. There were other immaterial increases in brokerage and advisory direct costs and data processing expense of \$29,000 and \$17,000, respectively for the six months ended June 30, 2022. The increases in salaries and employee benefits expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 included \$1.0 million and \$1.1 million, respectively, related to increases in commissions, incentive bonuses and earnouts related to increases in brokerage and private placement activity, \$93,000 and \$191,000 related to Tectonic Advisors for increases in headcount in our investment operations team resulting from increases in net flows of assets under management and merit raises, \$44,000 and \$347,000 related to the Bank's Nolan division for increases in headcount, promotions and merit increases, and production related bonuses, and \$31,000 and \$41,000 related to the Bank's Trust department for increases in headcount and merit increases and promotions. The increases in other expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 included increases in marketing, advertising and public relations expense of \$28,000 and \$118,000, respectively, related to initiatives across the segment aimed at supporting growth in our assets under management and our brokerage and third party administration services, increases in travel, meals, and lodging of \$20,000 and \$46,000, respectively, and net increases of \$44,000 and \$63,000, respectively, in software, licenses, and computer services related to technology initiatives across the segment, and other immaterial fluctuations related to increases in headcount. See also the analysis of non-interest income included in the section captioned "Non-Interest Expense" included elsewhere in this discussion.

#### HoldCo

The loss before taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 increased \$195,000, or 35.1%, and \$386,000, or 37.2%, compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increases in the loss were due to a decrease in service fees and other income for the six months ended June 30, 2022 of \$70,000 related to a decrease in distributions from securities not readily marketable compared to the same period in the prior year, and to increases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022 in salaries and employee benefits of \$93,000 and \$123,000, respectively, primarily related to an increase in salary, bonuses, and related payroll taxes, and in other expenses of \$109,000 and \$192,000, respectively, primarily related to an increase in costs for branding initiatives at our parent company, compared to the same periods in the prior year, and other individually immaterial fluctuations.

#### **Financial Condition**

#### **Investment Securities**

The primary purpose of the Company's investment portfolio is to provide a source of earnings for liquidity management purposes, to provide collateral to pledge against borrowings, and to control interest rate risk. In managing the portfolio, the Company seeks to attain the objectives of safety of principal, liquidity, diversification, and maximized return on investment.

As of June 30, 2022, securities available for sale consisted of U.S. government agency securities and mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by U.S. government agencies. Securities held to maturity consist of Property Assessed Clean Energy ("PACE") and PID/TIRZ investments. These investment contracts or bonds located in Texas, California and Florida, originate under a contractual obligation between the property owners, the local county or city administration, and a third-party administrator and sponsor. PACE assessments are created to fund the purchase and installation of energy saving improvements to the property such as solar panels. PID/TIRZ assessments are used to pay for the development costs of a residential subdivision. Generally, as a property assessment, the total assessment is repaid in installments over a period of 5 to 32 years by the then current property owner(s). Each installment is collected by the County or City Tax Collector where the property is located. The assessments are an obligation of the property.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Bank held FRB stock in the amount of \$2.2 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. The Bank held FHLB stock in the amount of \$1.3 million at each of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The FRB stock and FHLB stock were classified as restricted securities.

Securities not readily marketable consists of an income interest in a private investment.

The following table presents the amortized cost and fair values of the Company's securities portfolio as of the dates indicated:

		As of June	e 30, 2	022		As of Decem	nber 31, 2021		
	An	nortized	Es	timated	Amortized		]	Estimated	
(In thousands)		Cost	Fa	ir Value		Cost	F	Fair Value	
Securities available for sale:									
U.S. Treasuries	\$	1,980	\$	1,965	\$	-	\$	-	
U.S. government agencies		15,768		13,690		15,847		15,402	
Mortgage-backed securities		4,641		4,519		1,724		1,754	
Total securities available for sale	\$	22,389	\$	20,174	\$	17,571	\$	17,156	
Securities held to maturity:									
PACE investments	\$	2,593	\$	2,593	\$	2,731	\$	2,731	
PID/TIRZ investments		23,634		23,634		16,942		16,942	
Total securities held to maturity	\$	26,227	\$	26,227	\$	19,673	\$	19,673	
Securities, restricted:									
Other	\$	3,485	\$	3,485	\$	2,432	\$	2,432	
Securities not readily marketable	\$	100	\$	100	\$	100	\$	100	

The following table summarizes the maturity distribution schedule with corresponding weighted-average yields of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity as of June 30, 2022. Yields are calculated based on amortized cost. Mortgage-backed securities are included in maturity categories based on their stated maturity date. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations. Other securities classified as restricted include stock in the FRB and the FHLB, which have no maturity date. These securities have been included in the total column only and are not included in the total yield.

								Matu	ring						
		One '			Thr	one Year ough Years	After Five Years Through Ten Years				Aft Ten Y			To	otal
(In thousands, except percentages)	An	nount	<u>Yield</u>	A	mount	<u>Yield</u>	A	<u>Amount</u>	Yield	A	mount	Yield	-	Amount	Yield
Securities available for sale:															
U.S. Treasuries	\$	982	2.16%	\$	998	2.62%	\$	-	-%	\$	-	-9	% 5	\$ 1,980	2.39%
U.S. government agencies		6	2.22%		4,996	0.87%		7,120	1.04%		3,646	0.839	<b>%</b>	15,768	0.94%
Mortgage-backed securities			-		2,583	2.92%			-		2,058	3.69		4,641	1.93
Total	\$	988	2.16%	\$	8,577	1.69%	\$	7,120	1.04%	\$	5,704	0.789	%	\$ 22,389	1.27%
Securities held to maturity:															
PACE investments	\$	-	-%	\$	-	-%	\$	-	-%	\$	2,593	7.329	% :	\$ 2,593	7.32%
PID/TIRZ investments					2,127	4.12			-		21,507	6.26		23,634	6.07
Total	\$		-%	\$	2,127	4.12%	\$		-%	\$	24,100	6.389	% <sup>9</sup>	\$ 26,227	6.19%
Securities, restricted:															
Other	\$		-%	\$		-%	\$		-%	\$	_	_9	% <sup>9</sup>	\$ 3,485	-%
Securities not readily marketable	\$	_	-%	\$		-%	\$		-%	\$	_	-9	%	\$ 100	-%

## Loan Portfolio Composition

Total loans excluding allowance for loan losses, decreased \$200,000 to \$428.9 million at June 30, 2022, compared to \$428.7 million at December 31, 2021. PPP loans totaled \$363,000 at June 30, 2022, compared to \$34.1 million at December 31, 2021. SBA loans comprise the largest group of loans in our portfolio totaling \$236.7 million, or 55.2%, of the total loans at June 30, 2022, compared to \$233.9 million, or 54.5% (50.6% excluding PPP loans) at December 31, 2021. Commercial and industrial loans totaled \$90.7 million, or 21.1%, of the total loans at June 30, 2022, compared to \$83.3 million, or 14.3% (21.1% excluding PPP loans), at December 31, 2021. Commercial and construction real estate loans totaled \$61.5 million, or 14.3%, of the total loans at June 30, 2022, compared to \$65.6 million, or 15.3% (16.6% excluding PPP loans), at December 31, 2021.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loans held for investment:

(In thousands, except percentages)	June 30, 2022		December 31, 2021	
Commercial and industrial	\$ 90,660	21.1% \$	83,348	19.4%
Consumer installment	1,171	0.3	1,099	0.3
Real estate – residential	4,491	1.1	5,452	1.3
Real estate – commercial	57,992	13.5	62,966	14.7
Real estate – construction and land	3,539	0.8	2,585	0.6
SBA 7(a) guaranteed	143,488	33.4	145,983	34.0
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed	58,231	13.6	52,524	12.3
SBA 504	35,016	8.2	35,348	8.2
USDA	813	0.2	806	0.2
Factored Receivables	33,545	7.8	38,636	9.0
Total Loans	\$ 428,946	100.0% \$	428,747	100.0%

	Maturity Distribution of Loan Portfolio at June 30, 2022											
				Over One Year	(	Over Five Years						
		One Year		Through		Through	O	ver Fifteen		otal Loans		
(In thousands)		or Less		Five Years	Fit	fteen Years		Years	F	Receivable		
Commercial and industrial	\$	9,735	\$	12,656	\$	68,131	\$	138	\$	90,660		
Consumer installment		233		938		-		-		1,171		
Real estate – residential		217		4,274		-		-		4,491		
Real estate – commercial		19,810		31,078		5,573		1,531		57,992		
Real estate – construction and land		2,546		993		-		-		3,539		
SBA 7(a) guaranteed		125,898		13,815		3,775		-		143,488		
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed		49,388		7,067		1,551		225		58,231		
SBA 504		17,043		14,335		3,638		-		35,016		
USDA		813		-		-		=		813		
Factored Receivables		33,545		_		_		-		33,545		
Total	\$	259,228	\$	85,156	\$	82,668	\$	1,894	\$	428,946		

	Loans Due After One Year at June 30, 2022											
	Floating or											
(In thousands)	Fixed Rate			djustable Rate	Total							
Commercial and industrial	\$	79,494	\$	1,431	\$	80,925						
Consumer installment		938		=		938						
Real estate – residential		4,274		=		4,274						
Real estate – commercial		4,655		33,527		38,182						
Real estate – construction and land		993		=		993						
SBA 7(a) guaranteed		5,432		12,158		17,590						
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed		1,843		7,000		8,843						
SBA 504		-		17,973		17,973						
USDA		-		-		=						
Factored Receivables		<u>-</u>		<u>-</u>		<u>-</u>						
Total	\$	97,629	\$	72,089	\$	169,718						

	Maturity Distribution of Loan Portfolio at December 31, 2021									
				Over One		Over Five				
				Year		Years				
		One Year		Through		Through	O	ver Fifteen	T	otal Loans
(In thousands)		or Less		Five Years	Fi	fteen Years		Years	R	leceivable
Commercial and industrial	\$	12,430	\$	11,047	\$	59,730	\$	141	\$	83,348
Consumer installment		109		990		-		-		1,099
Real estate – residential		211		5,241		-		-		5,452
Real estate – commercial		10,411		34,651		16,325		1,579		62,966
Real estate – construction and land		1,178		677		730		-		2,585
SBA 7(a) guaranteed		98,524		47,024		435		-		145,983
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed		47,460		4,659		177		228		52,524
SBA 504		16,880		14,786		3,682		-		35,348
USDA		806		-		-		-		806
Factored Receivables		38,636				_		_		38,636
Total	\$	226,645	\$	119,075	\$	81,079	\$	1,948	\$	428,747

	Loans Due After One Year at December 31, 2021							
			Floating or					
(In thousands)		Fixed Rate	Adjustable Rate		Total			
Commercial and industrial	\$	69,707	\$ 1,211	\$	70,918			
Consumer installment		990	=		990			
Real estate – residential		5,241	=		5,241			
Real estate – commercial		10,191	42,364		52,555			
Real estate – construction and land		1,407	=		1,407			
SBA 7(a) guaranteed		35,278	12,181		47,459			
SBA 7(a) unguaranteed		730	4,334		5,064			
SBA 504		=	18,468		18,468			
USDA		=	-		-			
Factored Receivables		-	-		-			
Total	\$	123,544	\$ 78,558	\$	202,102			

Scheduled contractual principal repayments of loans do not reflect the actual life of such assets. The average life of loans is less than their average contractual terms due to prepayments.

#### Non-performing Assets

Our primary business segments are Banking and Other Financial Services, and as outlined above, the Banking segment's primary business is lending. That activity entails potential loan losses, the magnitude of which depends on a variety of economic factors affecting borrowers and factor clients which are beyond our control. While we have instituted underwriting guidelines and policies and credit review procedures to protect us from avoidable credit losses, some losses will inevitably occur. The COVID-19 pandemic has contributed to an increased risk of delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures. Through the date of this filing, the Company has not experienced any loan charge-offs caused by the economic impact from COVID-19 pandemic.

Loans are considered past due when principal and interest payments have not been received as of the date such payments are contractually due. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when management has concerns relating to the ability to collect the loan interest and generally when such loans are 90 days or more past due. A loan is considered impaired when it is probable that not all principal and interest amounts will be collected according to the original loan contract.

Foreclosed assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. Foreclosed assets are recorded at estimated fair value, less estimated selling costs, at the time of foreclosure. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing basis, properties are appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Write-downs are provided for subsequent declines in value and are included in other non-interest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans, loans modified under restructurings as a result of the borrower experiencing financial difficulties ("TDR"), factored receivables greater than 90 days past due and foreclosed assets. The following table sets forth certain information regarding non-performing assets and restructured loans by type, including ratios of such loans to total assets as of the dates indicated:

	June 30, 2022			December 31, 2021		
(In thousands, except percentages)	 Amount	Loan Category to Total Assets	Amount	Loan Category to Total Assets		
Non-accrual loans:						
Real estate – commercial	\$ 144	0.02%	\$ 149	0.03%		
SBA guaranteed	2,347	0.40	2,039	0.35		
SBA unguaranteed	 56	0.01		<u>-</u> _		
Total non-accrual loans	2,547	0.43	2,188	0.37		
Total loans past due 90 days and still accruing	380	0.06	400	0.07		
Foreclosed assets	1,079	0.18	1,079	0.18		
Total non-performing assets	\$ 4,006	0.68%	\$ 3,667	0.63%		
Restructured loans on non-accrual	\$ -	-%	\$ -			

Restructured loans are considered "troubled debt restructurings" if, due to the borrower's financial difficulties, we have granted a concession that we would not otherwise consider. This may include a transfer of real estate or other assets from the borrower, a modification of loan terms, or a combination of the two. Modifications of terms that could potentially qualify as a troubled debt restructuring include reduction of contractual interest rate, extension of the maturity date at a contractual interest rate lower than the current market rate for new debt with similar risk, or a reduction of the face amount of debt, either forgiveness of principal or accrued interest. As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, we had no loans considered to be a troubled debt restructuring.

As noted in Note 3, "Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses," Section 4013 of the CARES Act, as amended by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, provides financial institutions the option to suspend troubled debt restructuring accounting under GAAP in certain circumstances and the Company has elected that option. The Company has worked proactively with customers experiencing financial challenges from the COVID-19 pandemic. There were no loans in deferment due to the COVID-19 pandemic as of June 30, 2022. As of December 31, 2021, the amount of loans remaining in COVID-19 related deferment was not significant.

#### Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses ("ALLL") is a valuation allowance for credit losses in the loan portfolio. Management has adopted a methodology to properly analyze and determine an adequate loan loss allowance, which includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 310, *Receivables*, and allowance allocations calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 450, *Contingencies*. The analysis is based on sound, reliable and well documented information and is designed to support an allowance that is adequate to absorb all estimated incurred losses in our loan portfolio.

In estimating the specific and general exposure to loss on impaired loans, we have considered a number of factors, including the borrower's character, overall financial condition, resources and payment record, the prospects for support from any financially responsible guarantors, and the realizable value of any collateral.

We also consider other internal and external factors when determining the allowance for loan losses, which include, but are not limited to, changes in national and local economic conditions, loan portfolio concentrations, and trends in the loan portfolio. Given the level of economic disruption and uncertainty within the State of Texas and the nation as a whole, arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and volatility, the Company qualitatively adjusted the analysis for the allowance for loan losses for these and other risk factors as discussed in Item 1.A. "Risk Factors" of the 2021 Form 10-K. Based on an analysis performed by management at June 30, 2022, the allowance for loan losses is believed to be adequate to cover estimated loan losses in the portfolio as of that date based on the loan loss methodology employed by management. However, management's judgment is based upon a number of assumptions about future events, which are believed to be reasonable, but which may or may not prove valid. Thus, charge-offs in future periods may exceed the allowance for loan losses or significant additional increases in the allowance for loan losses may be required.

Senior management and the Directors' Loan Committee review this calculation and the underlying assumptions on a routine basis not less frequently than quarterly.

The table below presents a summary of the Company's net loan loss experience and provisions to the ALLL for the period indicated:

	As of and for the Three Months Ended			As of and for the Six Months Ended					
		June	e 30			June 30			
(In thousands, except percentages)		2022		2021		2022		2021	
Average loans outstanding	\$	449,289	\$	436,020	\$	450,754	\$	437,395	
Gross loans outstanding at end of period	\$	428,946	\$	410,811	\$	428,946	\$	410,811	
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period	\$	4,354	\$	3,158	\$	4,152	\$	2,941	
Provision for loan losses		-		141		327		569	
Charge offs:									
Commercial and industrial		30		-		30		-	
SBA 7(a)		-		=		42		215	
Factored Receivables		108		-		212		-	
Total charge-offs		138				284		215	
Recoveries:									
SBA 7(a)		7		8		11		12	
Factored Receivables		12		-		29		-	
Total recoveries		19		8		40		12	
Net (charge-offs) recoveries		(119)		8		(244)		(203)	
Allowance for loan losses at end of period	\$	4,235	\$	3,307	\$	4,235	\$	3,307	
Ratio of allowance to end of period loan		0.99%		0.80%		0.99%		0.80%	
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans		0.03%		0.00%		0.05%		0.05%	

The following table sets forth the allocation of the allowance as of the date indicated and the percentage of allocated possible loan losses in each category to total gross loans as of the date indicated:

(In thousands, except percentages)	June 30	, 2022	December 31, 2021		
Allocated:	Amount	Loan Category to Gross Loans	Amount	Loan Category to Gross Loans	
Commercial and industrial	\$ 1,223	21.1% \$	1,154	19.4%	
Consumer installment	15	0.3	15	0.3	
Real estate – residential	61	1.1	76	1.3	
Real estate – commercial	786	13.5	869	14.7	
Real estate – construction and land	48	0.8	40	0.6	
SBA	1,464	55.2	1,324	54.5	
USDA	19	0.2	20	0.2	
Factored Receivables	619	7.8	654	9.0	
Total allowance for loan losses	\$ 4,235	100.0% \$	4,152	100.0%	

#### Sources of Funds

#### General

Deposits, loan and investment security repayments and prepayments, proceeds from the sale of securities, and cash flows generated from operations are the primary sources of our funds for lending, investing, and other general purposes. Loan repayments are generally a relatively stable source of funds, while deposit inflows and outflows tend to fluctuate with prevailing interest rates, markets and economic conditions, and competition.

#### Deposits

Deposits are attracted principally from our primary geographic market area with the exception of time deposits, which, due to the Company's attractive rates, are attracted from across the nation. The Company offers a broad selection of deposit products, including demand deposit accounts, NOW accounts, money market accounts, regular savings accounts, term certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans (such as IRAs). Deposit account terms vary, with the primary differences being the minimum balance required, the time period the funds must remain on deposit, and the associated interest rates. Management sets the deposit interest rates periodically based on a review of deposit flows and a survey of rates among competitors and other financial institutions. The Company relies on customer service and long-standing relationships with customers to attract and retain deposits, and also on CD listing services. During the second quarter of 2020, we received \$40.0 million in brokered deposits through an Insured Cash Sweep One-Way Buy agreement to provide liquidity to fund PPP loan originations. This brokered deposit is included in our money market accounts as of June 30, 2022.

Total deposits increased \$31.0 million, or 15.2%, to \$475.0 million as of June 30, 2022, as compared to \$444.0 million as of December 31, 2021. The following table sets forth our average deposit account balances, the percentage of each type of deposit to total deposits, and average cost of funds for each category of deposits for the periods indicated:

		For the six months ended June 30,						
			2022		2021			
		Average	Percent of	Average	Average	Percent of	Average	
(In thousands, except percentages)	]	Balance	Deposits	Rate	Balance	Deposits	Rate	
Non-interest-bearing deposits	\$	98,117	21.6%	0.00%	\$ 64,205	17.7%	0.00%	
Savings and interest-bearing demand		16,275	3.6	0.26	13,740	3.8	0.23	
Money market accounts		132,542	29.2	0.50	109,602	30.3	0.36	
Time deposits		206,617	45.6	0.96	174,470	48.2	1.20	
Total deposits	\$	453,551	100.00%	0.59%	\$ 362,017	100.00%	0.70%	

The following table provides information on the maturity distribution of the insured time deposits and the time deposits exceeding the FDIC insurance limit as of June 30, 2022:

	As of June 30, 2022						
(In thousands)	I	nsured	Uı	ninsured		Total	
Maturing							
Three months or less	\$	36,281	\$	19,603	\$	55,884	
Over three months to six months		23,599		14,204		37,803	
Over six months to 12 months		59,094		29,349		88,443	
Over 12 months		43,964		2,707		46,671	
Total	\$	162,938	\$	65,863	\$	228,801	

#### **Borrowings**

The table below presents balances of each of the borrowing facilities as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands)	June 30, 2022	<b>December 31, 2021</b>
Borrowings:		
FRB borrowings (PPPLF)	\$	- \$ 34,521
Subordinated notes	12,000	12,000
	\$ 12,000	\$ 46,521

The Company has a credit line with the FHLB with borrowing capacity of \$48.3 million secured by commercial loans. The Company determines its borrowing needs and renews the advances accordingly at varying terms. The Company had no borrowings with FHLB as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

The Company also has a credit line with the FRB with borrowing capacity of \$20.3 million, which is secured by commercial loans. The Company had no borrowings under this line from the FRB as of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. As part of the CARES Act, the FRB offered secured discounted borrowings to banks who originated PPP loans through the Paycheck Protection Program Liquidity Facility ("PPPLF"). During June 2022, the Bank repaid its PPPLF from the FRB and had no borrowings under the PPPLF as of June 30, 2022.

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company also had subordinated notes totaling \$12.0 million, consisting of \$8.0 million issued in 2017 bearing an interest rate of 7.125% payable semi-annually and maturing on July 20, 2027, and \$4.0 million issued in 2018 bearing an interest rate of 7.125% payable semi-annually and maturing on March 31, 2028. The subordinated notes are unsecured and subordinated in right of payment to the payment of our existing and future senior indebtedness and structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness of our subsidiaries.

#### **Capital Resources and Regulatory Capital Requirements**

Shareholders' equity increased \$6.0 million, or 7.1%, to \$90.8 million as of June 30, 2022, from \$84.8 million as of December 31, 2021. The increase included net income of \$9.0 million, \$177,000 related to stock compensation expense and the issuance of common stock related to exercise of stock options in the amount of \$43,000 along with \$50,000 related to the reduction in note receivable utilized to exercise stock options. The increases were partly offset by a \$1.4 million net after-tax decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income related to the decrease in market value of the securities available for sale due to the recent significant increases in market interest rates, the repurchase of common stock in the amount of \$181,000 and dividends paid on the Series B preferred stock and paid on the common stock in the amounts of \$776,000 and \$883,000, respectively.

Together with the Bank, the Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's and, accordingly, the Company's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. As of June 30, 2022, the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they were subject. As of June 30, 2022, the Bank qualified as "well capitalized" under the prompt corrective action regulations of Basel III and the OCC.

Quantitative measures established by regulations to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined in the regulations), common equity Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to average assets (as defined in the regulations).

The following table presents our regulatory capital ratios, as well as those of the Bank, as of the dates indicated:

(In thousands, except percentages)		June 30,	2022	December 31, 2021		
	A	mount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	
Tectonic Financial, Inc.						
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)	\$	70,386	12.92% \$	62,794	11.82%	
Common Equity Tier 1 (to Risk Weighted Assets)		53,136	13.94	45,544	12.62	
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)		70,386	18.47	62,794	17.40	
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)		74,621	19.58	66,946	18.55	
T Bank, N.A.						
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)	\$	70,338	13.09% \$	63,302	12.06%	
Common Equity Tier 1 (to Risk Weighted Assets)		70,338	18.68	63,302	17.70	
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)		70,338	18.68	63,302	17.70	
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)		74,573	19.80	67,454	18.87	

In addition to the regulatory requirements of the federal banking agencies, Sanders Morris and Tectonic Advisors are subject to the regulatory framework applicable to registered investment advisors under the SEC's Division of Investment Management.

Sanders Morris is regulated by FINRA, which, among other requirements, imposes minimums on its net regulatory capital. As of June 30, 2022, Sanders Morris is in compliance with its net regulatory capital requirement.

#### Liquidity

Our liquidity relates to our ability to maintain a steady flow of funds to support our ongoing operating, investing and financing activities. Our board of directors establishes policies and analyzes and manages liquidity to ensure that adequate funds are available to meet normal operating requirements in addition to unexpected customer demands for funds, such as high levels of deposit withdrawals or loan demand, in a timely and cost-effective manner. The most important factor in the preservation of liquidity is maintaining public confidence that facilitates the retention and growth of a large, stable supply of core deposits and funds. Ultimately, public confidence is generated through profitable operations, sound credit quality and a strong capital position. Liquidity management is viewed from a long-term and a short-term perspective as well as from an asset and liability perspective. We monitor liquidity through a regular review of loan and deposit maturities and forecasts, incorporating this information into a detailed projected cash flow model.

The Bank's liquidity is monitored by its management, the Asset-Liability Committee and its board of directors who review historical funding requirements, current liquidity position, sources and stability of funding, marketability of assets, options for attracting additional funds, and anticipated future funding needs, including the level of unfunded commitments.

The Company's primary sources of funds are retail, small business, custodial, wholesale commercial deposits, loan repayments, maturity of investment securities, other short-term borrowings, and other funds provided by operations. While scheduled loan repayments and maturing investments are relatively predictable, deposit flows and loan prepayments are more influenced by interest rates, general economic conditions, and competition. The Company will maintain investments in liquid assets based upon management's assessment of (1) the need for funds, (2) expected deposit flows, (3) yields available on short-term liquid assets, and (4) objectives of the asset/liability management program.

As of June 30, 2022 the Company had approximately \$31.6 million held in an interest-bearing account at the FRB. The Company has the ability to borrow funds as members of the FHLB and the FRB. As of June 30, 2022, the Company's borrowing capacity with the FHLB was \$48.3 million based upon loan collateral pledged to the FHLB, of which none was utilized as of June 30, 2022. In addition, the Company had \$20.1 million of unpledged securities that could be pledged to the FHLB as collateral to increase the borrowing capacity. The borrowing capacity with the FRB was \$20.3 million, of which none was utilized as of June 30, 2022. In addition, the Company has approximately \$140.1 million of SBA guaranteed loans held for investment that could be sold to investors.

## **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of our customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the accompanying balance sheets. Our exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. We follow the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as we do for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of credit extended is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer and, if deemed necessary, may require collateral.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by us to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers.

As of June 30, 2022, we had commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit of approximately \$42.6 million and \$282,000, respectively.

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

#### Interest Rate Sensitivity and Market Risk

As a financial institution, our primary component of market risk is interest rate volatility. Our asset liability management policy provides management with guidelines for effective funds management and we have established a measurement system for monitoring the net interest rate sensitivity position.

Fluctuations in interest rates will ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded on most of our assets and liabilities, and the market value of all interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, other than those which have a short term to maturity. Interest rate risk is the potential of economic losses due to future interest rate changes. These economic losses can be reflected as a loss of future net interest income and/or a loss of current fair market values. The objective is to measure the effect on net interest income and to adjust the balance sheet to minimize the inherent risk while at the same time maximizing income.

We manage exposure to interest rates by structuring the balance sheet in the ordinary course of business. We use no off-balance-sheet financial instruments to manage interest rate risk.

Our exposure to interest rate risk is managed by the Bank's Asset Liability Committee in accordance with policies approved by the Bank's board of directors. The committee formulates strategies based on appropriate levels of interest rate risk. In determining the appropriate level of interest rate risk, the committee considers the impact on earnings and capital of the current outlook on interest rates, potential changes in interest rates, liquidity, business strategies and other factors.

The committee meets regularly to review, among other things, the sensitivity of assets and liabilities to interest rate changes, the book and market values of assets and liabilities, unrealized gains and losses, purchase and sale activities, commitments to originate loans and the maturities of investments and borrowings. Additionally, the committee reviews liquidity, cash flow flexibility, maturities of deposits and consumer and commercial deposit activity. We employ methodologies to manage interest rate risk which include an analysis of relationships between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and an interest rate shock simulation model.

We use interest rate risk simulation models and shock analysis to test the interest rate sensitivity of net interest income and fair value of equity, and the impact of changes in interest rates on other financial metrics. The assumptions used are inherently uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot precisely measure future net interest income or precisely predict the impact of fluctuations in market interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from the model's simulated results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes as well as changes in market conditions and the application and timing of various management strategies.

On at least an annual basis, we run various stress tests to measure the impact on net interest income and fair value of equity from changes in market interest rates under various scenarios. Under the static model, rates are shocked instantaneously, and ramped rates change over a twelve-month and twenty-four month horizon based upon parallel yield curve shifts. Parallel shock scenarios assume instantaneous parallel movements in the yield curve compared to a flat yield curve scenario. Additionally, we run non-parallel simulation involving analysis of interest income and expense under various changes in the shape of the yield curve.

The following table summarizes the impact of an instantaneous, sustained simulated change in net interest income over a 12-month horizon as of June 30, 2022:

Change in Interest Rates (basis points)	% Change in Net Interest Income
+200	12.78
+100	6.39
-100	(6.02)

We have found that, historically, interest rates on deposits change more slowly than changes in the discount and federal funds rates. This assumption is incorporated into the simulation model and is generally not fully reflected in a gap analysis, meaning that process by which we measure the gap between interest rate sensitive assets verses interest rate sensitive liabilities. The assumptions incorporated into the model are inherently uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot precisely measure future net interest income or precisely predict the impact of fluctuations in market interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from the model's simulated results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes as well as changes in market conditions and the application and timing of various strategies.

#### Impact of Inflation

Our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. These require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in the relative value of money over time due to inflation or recession. Inflation generally increases the costs of funds and operating overhead, and to the extent loans and other assets bear variable rates, the yields on such assets. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant effect on the performance of a financial institution than the effects of general levels of inflation. In addition, inflation affects a financial institution's cost of goods and services purchased, the cost of salaries and benefits, occupancy expense and similar items. Inflation and related increases in market interest rates by the Federal Reserve generally decrease the market value of investments and loans held and may adversely affect liquidity, earnings and shareholders' equity.

# **Item 4. Controls and Procedures**

#### **Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures**

As of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-Q, an evaluation was performed by the Company, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management was required to apply judgment in evaluating its controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were effective at the end of the period covered by this Form 10-Q.

#### **Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended June 30, 2022 that has materially affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

#### PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

# Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved, from time to time, as plaintiff or defendant in various legal actions arising in the normal course of its business. Based on the information presently available, management believes that the ultimate outcome in such proceedings, in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the business's financial condition or results of operations of the Company on a consolidated basis.

## Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes in the risk factors disclosed under Item 1A., "Risk Factors," of the Company's 2021 Form 10-K.

## Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None during the quarter ended June 30, 2022.

# Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable.

## Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

## Item 5. Other Information.

None.

#### Item 6. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit No.	Description of Exhibit
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Formation (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 9, 2019 (File No. 333-230949))
3.2	Certificate of Designation of 10.0% Series A Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 16, 2019 (File No. 001-38910))
3.3	Certificate of Designation of 9.00% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Series B Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 16, 2019 (File No. 001-38910))
3.4	Certificate of Amendment to effect Reverse Stock Split (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 16, 2019 (File No. 001-38910))
3.5	Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.5 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 6, 2019 (File No. 333-230949))
31.1 31.2 32.1	Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer* Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer* Section 1350 Certification**
101.INS 101.SCH 101.CAL 101.DEF 101.LAB 101.PRE 104	Inline XBRL Instance Document* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Calculation Linkbase Document* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

<sup>\*</sup> Filed herewith

<sup>\*\*</sup> Furnished herewith

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

# TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC.

Date: August 15, 2022 By: /s/ A. Haag Sherman

A. Haag Sherman Chief Executive Officer/Principal Executive Officer

By: /s/ Ken Bramlage

Ken Bramlage Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer/Principal Financial Officer

#### CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

- I, A. Haag Sherman, Chief Executive Officer of Tectonic Financial, Inc., certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Tectonic Financial, Inc. (the "registrant") for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 (this "report");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2022 By: /s/ A. Haag Sherman

A. Haag Sherman Chief Executive Officer

#### CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

- I, Ken Bramlage, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of Tectonic Financial, Inc., certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Tectonic Financial, Inc. (the "registrant") for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 (this "report");
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2022 By: /s/ Ken Bramlage

Ken Bramlage

Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Tectonic Financial, Inc. (the "Company") for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), A. Haag Sherman, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Ken Bramlage, as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

TECTONIC FINANCIAL, INC.

Date: August 15, 2022 By: /s/ A. Haag Sherman

A. Haag Sherman Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 15, 2022 By: /s/ Ken Bramlage

Ken Bramlage

Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer